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President’s Statement and Management

Discussion-and Analysis
IEREREEBNRR SN

The board of directors of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased
to present the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013 together
with comparative figures. These consolidated
financial statements have been reviewed by the
Company’s audit committee.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of final
dividend of HK$0.40 per share for the year ended 31
March 2013 (the “Final Dividend”) (2012: HK$0.04
per share).

Dividend warrants will be posted on or about 22
August 2013 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
on 9 August 2013.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed on Monday,
12 August 2013 and Tuesday, 13 August 2013. In
order to qualify for the Final Dividend, all share
transfers documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, namely Tricor
Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 August 2013.
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President’s Statement.and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEREREEENRED o

CORPORATE RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$524,398,000,
representing an increase of HK$320,815,000 or
157.6% from HK$203,583,000 for the year 2012.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to
HK$647,022,000 (2012: HK$101,181,000). The
increase in profit of HK$545,841,000 was primarily
attributable to, among other things, the gain arising
in fair value changes of the investment properties for
HK$487,051,000; the gain for HK$92,882,000 from
the segment of property development; the gain on
the deregistration of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of HK$21,530,000; and the turn from loss to gain on
the fair value changes of the investments held for
trading for HK$8,694,000.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2013 was HK$8.15 (2012: basic earnings per
share of HK$1.27).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in property investments, property development,
garment sourcing and exporting businesses, loan
financing and investment in securities.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FTEREREEBHWMED T

(i) N=XRE

(i) Property Investments

Hong Kong and Singapore

The Group has investment properties in Hong
Kong, Singapore and the PRC.

Turnover of the Group’s property rental for the
year under review was HK$51,246,000 (2012:
HK$40,507,000), an increase of HK$10,739,000
or 26.5% over the last year mainly due to
increasing rental rates for retail properties in
Hong Kong as demand for retail properties
continued to be driven by growing tourist and
domestic spending. The Group’s investment
properties comprise mainly residential,
commercial and industrial properties.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s commercial
and residential rental properties leased out
94.6% and 70.6% respectively. The industrial
rental properties continued to maintain a
high occupancy rate of 87.8%. The building
management fee income was HK$506,000
(2012: HK$411,000).

During the year, the Group completed the
acquisitions of the following properties:

(@ In May 2012, the Group completed the
purchase of a property at the Ground Floor,
No. 6 Cannon Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong at a consideration of HK$180,000,000.
Details of the property are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 22 March 2012.
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(b) In June 2012, the Group completed the
purchase of 5 properties situated at No.
15 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong at a total consideration of
HK$81,000,000. Details of the properties are
set out in the Company’s circular dated 25
June 2012.

At the year end date, the Group accounted for
an increase in fair value of investment properties
of HK$487,051,000 (2012: HK$5,302,000) based
on a professional valuation.

PRC

The Group had 100% leased out 2 blocks
of factory premises and partially leased out
4 blocks of dormitories, with a total gross
floor area of 52,624 sg.m. in Huzhou, PRC,
In addition, the construction works on a new
factory block target to be completed by mid
2013.

The Group regularly reviews the existing tenant
composition and seeks to enhance its optimum
mix. The Group also continues to replenish its
investment property portfolio by selecting and
locating prospective retail acquisition targets.
The Group believes that a well-balanced
portfolio provides a steady rental income and
a good potential for capital appreciation in the
long run.

President’s Statement.and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FEREREEBHME D@
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FTEREREEBHWMED T

(i) MEXR

(ii) Property Development

Turnover of property sales for the year
was HK$257,814,000, an increase of
HK$174,939,000 when compared with last year,
and comprised mainly the sale of the residential
units of One Victory. During the year, residential
property prices in Hong Kong maintained
their rising trend on the back of solid demand
from end users, though tough measures were
introduced by the Hong Kong government to
curb the residential property market.

Construction works of a residential project in
Prince Edward Road West was scheduled to be
completed by October 2013. It will offer about
49 units of 74,285 square feet GFA, and will be
put on the market for sale in December 2013.
Boasting uncompromising design and building
quality, this property may set to become one
of the most modern and stylish residential
buildings in the areas.

In July 2012, the Group has completed the
acquisitions of 6 units out of 8 units of a
building at No. 14 and 16 Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a
consideration of HK$228,800,000. Details of
the properties are set out in Company’s circular
dated 19 July 2012.

The Group continues actively seeking
opportunities to replenish and add to its land
bank through acquisitions at public auctions
and by private agreements.
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President’s Statement.and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FREBREREBENHRED )

(iii) Garment Sourcing and Exporting Businesses

(iii) B R H O R KER

The garment sourcing and exporting businesses
segment was acquired by the Group on 25
October 2011 by increasing its control over
the shareholdings of Easyknit Enterprises
Holdings Limited (“EE”) from 31.70% to
80.89% till 11 November 2011 via (i) acquiring
a total of 61,775,205 EE shares (representing
approximately 11.22%) from an independent
third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$18,533,000; and (i) upon the close of the
unconditional mandatory offer made by the
Company to holders of EE shares, the Company
acquired from the market and the general
offer a total of 209,082,479 EE shares at an
aggregate cash consideration of approximately
HK$62,713,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, this segment
recorded a turnover of HK$211,770,000 (2012:
HK$76,494,000) representing 176.9% increase
comparing with 2012. Cost of sales for the
year amounted to HK$190,157,000 (2012:
HK$70,175,000) and the loss of this business
segment was HK$1,601,000 (2012: loss of
HK$3,898,000).

(iv) Investment in Securities

The Group has maintained a portfolio of listed
equity securities in Hong Kong. For the year
ended 31 March 2013, this business segment
has recorded a gain of HK$15,433,000.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FTEREREEESNRED @

PROSPECTS

We are well aware of the challenges ahead, but we
also see opportunities. Having pursued a tradition of
prudent management for decades, we will leverage
on our combined expertise in property development
and property investment to enable the Group to
establish a strong foothold in the markets, capture
new development and investment opportunities in
Hong Kong.

The Group’s focused approach of developing unique
properties tailoring to the need of specific market
segment will enable it to maintain significant return
from its property portfolio. The current low-interest
rate is expected to fuel demand from households
seeking to improve their living environment. Sales at
project of Prince Edward Road West are expected
to be booked during next financial year.

Because of the decrease in the import of garments
by USA during the year, the market for garment
export remains volatile and highly competitive.
Under such market conditions, the Group expects
continuing challenges for the garment sourcing and
exporting businesses for the year 2013/14.

On front of securities investment business, the
Board will stick to a prudent principle in its
investment strategy focusing on investment vehicles
which is relatively lower risks in order to secure
stable returns at a minimal risk.

As in the past, the Group will stay in alerted
caution, solidify its financial and asset positions,
and continue to intensify its investment in properties
so as to transform the potential value of the
investments into a shareholders’ value, generating
sustained revenue for the shareholders.
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President’s Statement.and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

TEREREEENRED o

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had bank balances
and cash amounting to HK$340,869,000 (2012:
HK$403,369,000). The Group’s gearing ratio (total
borrowings to total equity) as at 31 March 2013
was 0.24 (2012: 0.16). As at 31 March 2013, the
Group’s current ratio was 12.7 (2012: 9.8) which
was calculated on the basis of current assets
of HK$1,494,383,000 (2012: HK$1,168,143,000)
to current liabilities of HK$117,686,000 (2012:
HK$119,084,000). During the year, the Group
services its debts mainly through the internal
generated resources and bank borrowings.

Capital Structure

During the year, there was no change to the share
capital of the Company. As at 31 March 2013,
the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 79,420,403 shares.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2013, bank loans amounting to
HK$755,567,000 (2012: HK$378,779,000) were
secured by investment properties, properties
held for development for sales and deposit and
prepayments for a life insurance policy of the
Group having an aggregate carrying value of
HK$1,939,755,000 (2012: HK$667,500,000).
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FTEREREEESNRED @

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
Subscription of Rights Shares of EE

During the year, the Group has undertaken to EE
and the underwriter of the rights issues of EE that:

(@) a total of 199,225,335 rights shares were
allotted and taken up in full on 3 October
2012, the subscription cost amounted to
approximately HK$15,340,351; and

(b) a total of 149,419,000 rights shares were
allotted and taken up in full on 11 January
2013, the subscription cost amounted to
HK$59,767,600.

The Group did not apply any excess rights shares in
the above 2 rights issues. Details of the rights issues
were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 15 August 2012 and 11 October 2012.

Acquisition of a BVI Company

In July 2012, for the completion of the acquisitions
of all issued shares and the sale loan of Total Expect
Limited at a consideration of HK$228,800,000,
the Group became the owner of 6 units in a
building located at No. 14 and 16 Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Details of the
properties were set out in the Company’s circular
dated 19 July 2012.

Completion in the Deregistration of PRC
Companies

In April 2012, the Company has completed
the deregistration of 2 PRC companies, namely
Easyknit Dyeing and Printing (Huzhou) Co., Limited
and Easyknit Weaving (Huzhou) Co., Limited to
cease the bleaching, dyeing and knitting businesses
in the PRC.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FERENEBEENRR DT (#)

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in
Hong Kong dollars, US Dollars, Singapore dollars
and Renminbi. During the year, the Group did
not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument
for hedging purposes was employed. The directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2013 (2012: nil).

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group spent HK$9,553,000
(2012: HK$875,000) on acquisition of property, plant
and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has capital
commitments of HK$5,492,000 (2012:
HK$171,850,000).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 57 employees
(2012: 57). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$25,628,000 for the
year under review (2012: HK$15,104,000). The
Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong’s
employees and has made contributions to the
stated-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the PRC government for the PRC employees. The
Group has two share option schemes to motivate
employees.
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President’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FTERENEEEBNRR DT @)

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 5 July 2012, a new share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was adopted and approved by the then
shareholders of the Company for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date. Since the
adoption date, the Board, may at its discretion,
grant share options to any eligible person to
subscribe for the shares in the Company subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in the
Scheme. No share options have been granted for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the
“EE Scheme”) was adopted and approved by
the then shareholders of EE for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date. Since
the adoption date, the Board of EE, may at its
discretion, grant share options to any eligible
person to subscribe for the shares in EE subject
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in the EE
Scheme. No share options have been granted for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2013
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECZBEE

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 70, is an executive director,
president, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and a member and
chairman of the Executive Committee. He is also
an executive director, chairman, chief executive
officer and authorised representative, and a
member and chairman of the Executive Committee
of Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited (“Easyknit
Enterprises”). Mr. Kwong was graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1965 and was admitted
as Barrister-at-law in the United Kingdom and Hong
Kong in 1970 and 1973 respectively. He has over
30 years of experience in the legal field. He serves
as director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and Easyknit Enterprises. In 2007, Mr. Kwong was
appointed as president and chief executive officer
of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECZEE @)

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Vice President

Ms. Lui, aged 55, is a co-founder of the Group,
an executive director and vice president of
the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also an executive director
and deputy chairman, and a member of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit Enterprises. Ms.
Lui has been involved in the textiles industry for
over 30 years and has extensive experience in
design, manufacturing, marketing and distribution
of apparel. She serves as director of various
subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit
Enterprises. Ms. Lui was appointed to the Board
in 1994. In 2006, Ms. Lui was appointed as vice
president. Ms. Lui is the wife of Mr. Koon Wing
Yee, the co-founder of the Group and substantial
shareholder of the Company. She is also the mother
of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an executive director of
the Company.

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 28, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and a
member of the Executive Committee since 2010.
She is also an executive director and authorised
representative, and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit Enterprises. She graduated
from the University of Durham in 2007 with Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics and Politics. She also
received her Bachelor of Laws degree and Legal
Practice Course qualification in 2009 from the
College of Law, England. Ms. Koon is the daughter
of Ms. Lui, the vice president of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continuea)

EEVERE @

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

Mr. Tse, aged 55, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a non-executive director of
Easyknit Enterprises. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Adam
Smith University of America in the United States
in 1996. He has more than 30 years of experience
in garment manufacturing and merchandising. Mr.
Tse was appointed to the Board as an executive
director and vice president in 2005 and was
subsequently re-designated from vice president to
president and appointed as chief executive officer
in 2006. In 2007, Mr. Tse was re-designated from
an executive director to a non-executive director of
the Company, and resigned as president and chief
executive officer.

MR. TSUI CHUN KONG

Mr. Tsui, aged 62, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also
a member and chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the
Oklahoma City University in the US in 1991 and is a
fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tsui has over
40 years of experience in the public accounting
profession and the commercial sector, especially the
travel industry. He has experience in the preparation
for the listing of shares on the Stock Exchange and
worked for a few listed companies. Mr. Tsui is now
practising as a public accountant under his own
name.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECZEE @)

MR. JONG KOON SANG

Mr. Jong, aged 64, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2005. He is also
a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee. He is a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of International
Accountants, England. He is also a fellow member
of the Chartered Management Institute, England
and a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Jong was the President of The
Association of International Accountants during
2011 and 2012, Hong Kong Branch, the accountant
ambassador of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Honorary Vice President
of Accounting Student Society of Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He is also
a member of the Regional Advisory Committee of
Hong Kong Hospital Authority. Mr. Jong has over
40 years of management experience in the financial,
industrial and property business. He is currently the
director and a shareholder of East Rise Corporation
Limited which is a company trading in certified non
conflict African minerals.

MR. HON TAM CHUN

Mr. Hon, aged 78, is an independent non-
exeuctive director of the Company since 2008. He
is also a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee; a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Hon is a retired
Magistrate and Barrister. He had been in service
with the Hong Kong Government for more than 39
years. During 1969 to 1973, Mr. Hon was a Crown
Counsel in the Legal Department of the Hong Kong
Government. He was a Judicial Officer in Judiciary
from 1975 to 1995 when he retired.
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERHE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance by emphasizing
transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board strives to
ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Company complied with all code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (“Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, with the exception
of code provision A.2.1.

Code Provision A.2.1.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is the president
and chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board considers that the combination of the roles
of president and chief executive officer will not
impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company
as the Board will meet regularly to consider major
matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board is of the view that this structure provides the
Group with strong and consistent leadership, which
can facilitate the formulation and implementation
of its strategies and decisions and enable it to
grasp business opportunities and react to changes
efficiently. As such, it is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group.

ARrEFg((EBE)AHREB
ZEERE By HBE BEEA
o REREEEERAKT -EES
BNERITBEBEUZEREERR -
AREARRIIRR 2 Fl& KR T R 5
ZBRIBLE -

BF(ERERERTA)

B Z2013F3A31BILEEARN - K
NEl—EEBT EMR A ER14 2D
EERTFRTADZSFA DB
3 - TN XETIL A SFRNMESCE AL2.1
fEBR A -

FRIGRICE A2 1§

BEALEREARRZEFERERT
BEg - R EEe e MRend
TENREERCIERE WESR
ENAR IR EERTHAR CBH
AMA—TEFEEZSRARAE
HEME <HENERE, FE -2
ZERRURBAAERRHETRE
m—HHRERE - BHERK ZHIF]
FERE - UEARESAMEEHL
AYEERERE L AUEANAEE
ZERIFAIR °

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t

19




20

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE @)

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 Directors, with
3 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director
and 3 independent non-executive Directors. The
Board has in its composition a balance of skills
and experience necessary for decision making
and fulfilling its business needs. The participation
of non-executive Directors in the Board bring
independent judgement on issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders of the Company have
been duly considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less
than one month’s prior written notice to the other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and has
received from each of them the annual confirmations
of independence required by the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE @

The Board members for the year ended 31 March
2013 were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

— President and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu — Deputy Chairman
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tsui Chun Kong
Mr. Jong Koon Sang
Mr. Hon Tam Chun

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and
financial performance of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE @

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of
the Group to executive Directors and senior
management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive Directors who have
attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the directors of the Group
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from the
corporate activities.

From April 2012 onwards, all Directors have been
provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to give them
aware of the Group’s affairs and facilitates them
to discharge their duties under the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance and corporate governance
practices organized by professional bodies or
chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective
training records pursuant to the Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE @

All Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development and refresh
their knowledge and skills during the year. Such
professional development was completed either
by way of attending briefings, conference, forum,
courses and seminars and self-reading which are

relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

Number of meetings

Executive Directors
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
Lui Yuk Chu

Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Director
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

INEDs

Tsui Chun Kong
Jong Koon Sang
Hon Tam Chun

RV

Hi7EE:
ETh
BAM

FUTES:

BUFATES:

R
ik
HEE

2012

AGM
2012%
RREEAE

2012135
Board

g28

4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4

TRESRFANELINEE NS
EX¥R- E%EEE’J%HE&&BE%EEEH#
Wi - TR EXERENTABRELE
FREGLEZTRB cEHE &
%o owmiE - REMTTE LMSZFEEHH
FAER -

Attendance record of Directors and Committee Members in 2012/13

REEZRZEEHENEELR
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
ENZee  §MzEgE  REZEE
2 1 0
2/2 - -
2/2 1 -
2/2 1 -
212 1 -

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t

23




24

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the
preparation of annual financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of
affairs, and cash flows for the year. Management
provides the Board with management accounts
and updates on a monthly basis, with a view to
giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s performance, financial position, and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2013, the Board:

(@ adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the
International Financial Reporting Standards in all
material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently;

(c) made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates; and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis.

In 2012/13, the annual and interim results
were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to
provide shareholders with transparent and timely
financial information.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE @

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
system of internal controls of the Company and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets.

During the year, the Company conducted reviews
on the effectiveness of the internal control system.
The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control
report. No major issue has been identified during
the course of review.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the
following corporate governance duties:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
directors and senior management of the Group;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE @)

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4 standing
Committees with specific roles and responsibilities.
Their terms of reference and composition are
reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they
remain appropriate and reflect changes in good
practice and governance. The terms of reference
of each of the Committees are available on the
Company’s website. The attendance record of the
Committee members is shown on page 23 of this
Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 4 members: 3
INEDs and 1 executive Director, held 2 meetings
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The principal duties of Audit Committee include:

() to oversee the relationship with the auditor;

(i) to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication; and

(i) to oversee the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2012
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2012; and (ii) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2012 and for
the six months ended 30 September 2012 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service fees
provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external
auditor of the Company, for the year ended 31
March 2013 amounted to HK$3,027,000 (2012:
HK$1,775,000, and those in relation to non-
audit services amounted to HK$1,965,000 (2012:
HK$3,411,000).

Review of 2012/13 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2012/13
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based on
this review and discussions with management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, and fairly
present the Group’s financial position and results
for the year ended 31 March 2013.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 4
members who are 3 INEDs and 1 executive Director,
held 1 meeting for the year ended 31 March 2013.

The principal functions include:

() to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

(i) to determine the remuneration package of all
executive Directors and senior management of
the Group;

(iii) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board
from time to time.

The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30
March 2012 comprising 4 members: 3 INEDs and 1
executive Director.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will base on the criteria in
the procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment, etc) to identify
and recommend proposed candidates to the Board.
During the year, the Nomination Committee did not
hold any meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all
the executive Directors.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee sees to the implementation of the
Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the
Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the Board policy and procedures are
followed. Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary
of the Company, has taken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for
communication with its shareholders. Information
will be communicated to shareholders through:

— continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange of
all material information;

— periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;

— notices of meetings and explanatory material;
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— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

— the Company’s website at www.easyknit.com

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The
Board is grateful to Shareholders for their views,
and welcomes their questions and concerns raised
in relation to the management and governance of
the Group.

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than one-
tenth of the share capital of the Company carrying
the rights of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at 7th Floor, Hong
Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle
Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(for the attention of the Company Secretary).

2012 Annual General Meeting

The Board and the management are committed to
the constructive use of the AGM as a forum to meet
with Shareholders and to hear their view and answer
their questions about the Group and its business.
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The Chairman and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2012 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions
being proposed and the Company’s business. The
Directors in attendance included those who were
chairing the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee on the
date of the meeting.

At the 2012 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.

Matters resolved at the 2012 AGM

— Received the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2012 together with the
Reports of the Directors and the auditor

— Election of Messrs. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky and
Hon Tam Chun as Directors

— Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company and authorisation to the
Directors to fix the auditor’s remuneration

— Approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to repurchase shares of an amount not
exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2012 AGM
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— Approval of a general mandate for the
Directors to allot and issue of new shares
of an amount not exceeding 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Company’s
issued share capital as at the date of 2012
AGM

— Approval of the adoption of a new share
option scheme

2013 Annual General Meeting

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the
2013 AGM and exercise their right to vote.
They are invited to ask questions related to
the business of the meeting, and will have an
opportunity to meet with the Directors following
the conclusion of the meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2013 AGM,
the Board has proposed general mandates for
the repurchase of Company’s shares and the
issue of the Company’s shares. Further details of
business to be conducted at the 2013 AGM will
be set out in the circular to Shareholders to be
sent together with this Annual Report and posted
on the Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Company has not made any changes to its
Bye-Laws. A consolidated version of the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of
the Company is available on the website of the
Company.

CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF
FINANCIAL YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that
have occurred since 1 April 2013 to the date of
approval of this report.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on pages 52 and 53.

The directors of the Company now recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.40 per share
to the shareholders on the register of members on
11 August 2013, and the retention of the remaining
profit in the Company.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the percentage of sales from the
Group’s largest customer attributable to the Group
was 34.3%. The percentage of sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers combined
was less than 49.3% of the Group’s total revenue.
During the year, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers combined were 24.6% and
92.0%, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
has a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$9,553,000 on acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2013 by independent professional
property valuers and the gain arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
been charged directly to profit or loss, amounted to
approximately HK$487,051,000.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

The details of the Group’s properties held for
development for sale are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
at 31 March 2013 are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 31 March 2013 were as follows:

Contributed surplus PN
Accumulated profits Z:0a A
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of a company is also available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(President and Chief Executive Officer)
Lui Yuk Chu (Vice President)
Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive director:
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Independent non-executive directors:
Tsui Chun Kong

Jong Koon Sang

Hon Tam Chun
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99,
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election.

None of the directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The Company has received annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive
directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the
independent non-executive directors is independent
to the Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 15 to 18 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance between
the Company or its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the year, and there was no
contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short
positions of the directors and the chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

(a) Interests in the Company (long positions):

Name of director

EEEH

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu

Capacity
5%

Beneficiary (Note i)

EEKRAZLT St mA (M)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a
(Note ii) trust

B RIRE L (M i) FErEXmA

Notes:

(ii)

Out of 46,609,144 shares, 17,429,664 shares were beneficially
owned by Sea Rejoice Limited which was wholly-owned by Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu. The remaining 29,179,480 shares were registered in the
name of and were beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited
which in turn was wholly-owned by Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family

members other than her spouse).

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, was deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust.

EERFETHRAERKRD RME
BAD 2z (%)

(a) RERQTF 2R (HR)

Approximate
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Number of ordinary shares

ordinary of the Company

shares held BEELEAAT

HELE ERTER

R &E BROHNBEDL

46,609,144 58.69%

29,179,480 36.74%
fifaE -

46,609,144 [ [ 1 7 #) 17,429,664 [ 2 {7
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

(b) Interests in associated corporations (long
positions):

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit Enterprises”)

Name of director Capacity

B8 5%

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary (Note iii)

EEURLTL B m A (B etii)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a
(Note iv) . trust

BRI LT (Hiitiv) FEEXHEA

Notes:

(i)

(iv)

78,566,844 shares and 100,735,956 shares are registered in the
name of and are beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited
and Goodco Development Limited respectively, both companies
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Sea Rejoice
Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued share
capital of the Company and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu. Magical Profits Limited is interested in approximately 36.74%
of the issued share capital of the Company and it is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares
by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical
2000 Trust.

EEREETHAERKRG XA
iqriged- 360

(b) R EZE R (FR) -

KEEXEEHERL &
([k&=EX])
Approximate
percentage
to issued

ordinary shares

Number of of Easyknit
ordinary Enterprises
shares held HRkREX
FEER 2 BTE]
& E BRONBEDE
179,302,000 43.52%
179,302,000 43.52%

(i)

(iv)
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TRARBEEL21.95% 2 EEMEREE
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(EXBZAREEER LT B EREBMN
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERIETHAERBRHLRIERE
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING Rz =)
SHARES (continued)

(b) Interests in associated corporations (long (b) AHEEEZEHE(IFE) : (&)
positions): (continuea)

Wellmake Investments Limited (“Wellmake”) BEREERAG([#EE])

(note v) (HfiFv)
Percentage
to issued
non-voting
Number of deferred
non-voting shares

deferred of Wellmake
shares held {HEECRT
EEE mIRERE

Name of director Capacity REREEL EIE R 17

EEERB 5% BRHEB Aot

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Note vi) 2 100%

EEHLL (Bfatvi)

Notes: WiEt

(v)  All the issued ordinary shares in the share capital of Wellmake (v) RBRERAP2HICETIERZE LEKR
which carry the voting rights were held by the Company. HEARERFE

(vi)  One non-voting deferred share was held by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu as (viy —BRELZRECROEFEIHRZINER
beneficial owner and the other one was held by her spouse, Mr. BREANGNEE M3 RUBERBE X
Koon Wing Yee. BAERE -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, B EXFTHEEEIN - R20134F3 A
none of the directors or chief executives of the 31H @ ARAEFHFEBTRAEM
Company had any interests or short positions in ERADQEKEEMEEEE(TER
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the &% &k HAERAIEXVE) 2% - 18
Company or any of its associated corporations BRMHKEHFFEE DI AKRARR
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which &% % M B & 1541 25 352 1§48 & AT 17
had been recorded in the register kept by the EBZ &R W SKEZETAEE
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as 7B ANA R 7] M B T 2 (E [ #E 25 3k
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock A& °

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Details of the Company’s share option schemes of
the Company and Easyknit Enterprises Holdings
Limited (the subsidiary of the Company) and
movement of options during the year are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to, or exercised by, the
directors during the year. There was no outstanding
option granted to the directors at the beginning and
at the end of the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the
year ended 31 March 2013 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or other body corporate
nor had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TERR

As at 31 March 2013, the persons (other than the M20134%3A31H ' REEH & H
directors or the chief executives of the Company) E&HIE336EREAATETEE
who had an interest or a short position in the shares 7 & ZMALE - HERQFRKRHG &
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded RN 2 ERF AR 2 A+ (EEK
in the register required to be kept by the Company ZAQEZETEBITHAERIN AT ¢
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions: S
Approximate
Number  percentage to
of ordinary issued ordinary
shares held  shares of the
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Capacity (long position) Company
KEEE (RDACEA
IERRER HE 5% RH#E EERGNEIM
Koon Wing Yee i Interest of spouse 46,609,144 58.69%
BEXE g
Sea Rejoice Limited i &ii Beneficial owner 174,592,987 21.95%
ERERAT BHEEA
Magical Profits Limited i &ii Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
EREAA
Accumulate More Profits Limited i Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
XEHEE R
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited i&iii Trustee 398,450,671 36.74%
A
Hang Seng Bank Limited i Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
BERITERAT R ER
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited i Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
ERLBEESRTERAT AR 2
HSBC Asia Holdings BV i Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
R ER
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE @

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERR@®
Approximate
Number  percentage to
of ordinary issued ordinary
shares held  shares of the
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Capacity (long position) Company
KEEE (RDACEA
IERRER HE 5% RH#A EBRGNEIM
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) iiiInterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
R ER
HSBC Holdings BV fii Iﬂterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
AR 2 B
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) fii Igterest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
REHEE ER
HSBC Holdings plc jii Interest of controlled corporation 398,450,671 36.74%
EZHRERAT R EE
Notes: Kt -

Out of 46,609,144 shares, 17,429,664 shares are beneficially owned
by Sea Rejoice Limited which is wholly owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.
The other 29,179,480 shares relate to the same block of shares in
the Company. These shares are registered in the name of and are
beneficially owned by Magical Profits Limited which was wholly-
owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-
owned by Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of
The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu, a director of the Company, and her family members other than her
spouse). Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the 29,179,480
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust. Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, is deemed to be interested in the 46,609,144 shares by virtue
of the SFO.

() 46,609,144 %% 17 7 #917,429,664 I A% 15 M 4%
BRAREZER  ZARHEEKRI2ER
B © $2 T #29,179,480 B% % 13 LA Magical Profits
Limited 7 2 &5 R HERES - 22 F o
Accumulate More Profits Limited 2 &% A © M
Accumulate More Profits Limited 8 {54 The
Magical 2000 Trust(EZZABEEEIKZ LR
Br B BB ASN 2 RIRFL B ) 2 = 7F AHang Seng
Bank Trustee International Limited 2 & %% ° &
ARAT(BERZTHZRARARAFARTES)A
AEBEThe Magical 2000 Trust¥ @Az —2 &
- WRAR29,179,480 R H T HEEE - B
KELEABRULTZESE  BREFHFRMAEK
AR B 46,609,144 IRAR 15 R A #Eas o
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Directors’ Report (continueq)

EESRE @

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(il

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a director of

Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits Limited.

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank Limited was
owned as to approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited was wholly-owned by HSBC Asia Holdings BV
which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Asia Holdings (UK).
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) was wholly-owned by HSBC Holdings BV
which in turn was wholly-owned by HSBC Finance (Netherlands). HSBC
Finance (Netherlands) was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings

plc.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the
Company had not been notified of any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

FERR#)

Wizt (&)

(i)

(il

ARAREZTERLTITAREFERLAR
Magical Profits Limited 2 &£ % °

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited
REERTERRRAIZZEMB LA - BB £
BESRTERAANELERTERRAAES
M62.14% 2w - A LBEERITERAA
fHSBC Asia Holdings BV2%& A » MHSBC
Asia Holdings BV J5HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)
22 &M BAF - HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)f
HSBC Holdings BV £ 41#% ' il HSBC Holdings
BVH HSBC Finance (Netherlands)% & # A °
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) J3/E L2 B R D
Az EMBAT -

R EXFTHETEEIN 201353 A
31H ' AREIWEEMESEAATIA
ARAIBIEE S & BHE K5 336 1%
REAMGEE 2B LMAZ AR B HD

KRR

TRV
*’EfﬁE RE °
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEERE @

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2013.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the executive directors of
the Company on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company
is determined by the board of directors of the
Company after recommendation from Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the time commitment
and responsibilities of individual directors, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to the directors and eligible
employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

BE - HEREERD

B ZE2013FE3A31HIEEERN
NEIZETRMNERARBERE
S EOEAART 2D

EE #

FEEE

AEEREZHSBRRITAR AR
TEFRNF XA ERERTE
NEFIMETE °

ARAEFZHSDARRAESSE
BRFMZES c2ER  REMNE
FZHBERRBR  ARBZEE
FRITHREERE °

ARAERPBEESE - (FRYE
ENRCERRER KRR FEFE
A M RRMITESS

BrBERE
ARl R BRI AR EADIGE

BERBER G REARRER
EPImBR B R RBEH -
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Directors’ Report (continueq)

EESRE @

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors
of the Company, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2013

RANRERE
BREAHLRTARAIZEZEMR

ARBEFEMAE KRR —HR L
MR RERFTRA L RRHRE °

73]
ARAHREETZIRRBFAS

ITRERZER BERY HBaERA
BRI YNEIPA - G

BRA
TEREETTHAEZ

7B 20136 A26 H
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
BB RS

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EASYKNIT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 181,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BAZEREEARAFAZBERR
(REFREZMH L BRAAE)

AEEMATEBEIERM) EERINANRES2E
181 EEREEBERAR(EAR]) REKE
ARG EERNEEHBERE - LEUBER
RBER2013F3 A31 B zREMKiknE - &
BEZBULFEZFRE2ARGSR  HeEaE
FNGERSTER  UREASHERMERAE
thARIEE R o

EENGEMBERRARENEL

ERREZRRARBELGIMAERMLEE
HBRERARBELAGIICHEERRREE
MAFZHEAMBRE GEERREZRRMA
ZNEER - NEMRR RAMBRR T FES
RERFE kiR AR T8 2 AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

B Z B E @)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BREE 2 BT

B EERRERMCEZHZEFRHBTERR
EHER  YRRARERREENFERARE
BOREL RS - BRIULIASN - ABREREEME A -
RHTERABEATREFEMALE LSRR
EIEE - RMEREELEIMAGRMHLEE
BAIEAETERTE - SRR ERRMETE
ERE - WREARMTER  NAERELFRS
HBBRRE A ENERERRAL

B RATRFAERA Bir s MBmRmEE
ERBRBER 2 BRRE - METE 2B FEURNZ
BRD 2 FIE - BEST RN EGFE R M EBGRE
BBBRFAEAGERRA AR - EVEZERE
i GEMEEZERRREEMA TRSHE
Wk HEBARER - UHRHEE 2B RIEF 2
WHRHER I NDER L BEERER - KT
BEABESMRA L GTERRZABEE RMEL

itttz 6B Y - URFHBREMBRER 2B
oA o

HAME - RAMES BEZRERRCNEE
REFI BT R RGER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB R E ®)

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

26 June 2013

BER

BMRAR  ZEGEVBRRERBEEBUBRS
ZREEMA TR ESRER20135F3 431 H
ZHBRAREEZBILFEZ AFRR2RE
WEERREBRAGH 2 REERLRES -

BE « BERASHHT
HEET AP
0

201346 426 H

KEFBREBEARAE 2012/13 44t
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHEWER

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

Turnover

Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on deregistration of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries

Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of
investments held for trading

Loss on disposal of associates

Gain from a bargain purchase

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation charge

Profit for the year

ES
HE R IRBAA

EHM

Hito A

TR X
REMFz A VHEZS WS

AR EMBEAR 2 W

HEMERARZER
RE—HipHEWRE 2 Wt
DIEBE RRIRE

BRFL AL F
RIEFX

AR F

Notes

it

10
33

11

14

12

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Restated)

(&Z71)

524,398 203,583
(317,355) (116,170)
207,043 87,413
13,400 7,482
(31,752) (8,321)
(48,221) (32,072)
487,051 5,302
21,530 -
8,694 (23,133)
= (119,547)

- 211,089
= (14,608)
(10,274) (2,995)
647,471 110,610
(1,723) (2,934)
645,748 107,676
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

RE 2 E Wk 7 ()
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
EZ2013F3 731 HI-FZ
2013 2012
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Hist FET FET
(Restated)
(&251)
Other comprehensive income (expense)  Hh 2 EUA (F)
Change in fair value of available-for- AHHEREZ AT EE
sale investments 435 (10,763)
Exchange difference arising on MEBINEECERER
translation of foreign operations 3,575 2,496
Exchange difference released upon RiFEIEE BB A Bk
deregistration of non-wholly owned fRIRERER
subsidiaries (5,560) —
Fair value gain on leasehold properties MAMFERERENE
upon transfer to investment N EE
properties 12,566 =
Share of translation reserve of VN =) NG A R
associates - 2,060
Other comprehensive income (expense)  ANEEz EM2EUBA(F%)
for the year 11,016 (6,207)
Total comprehensive income for the year A E 7 2 E W A 42458 656,764 101,469
Profit for the year attributable to: DIEREE T -
— owners of the Company — ARARIRRE 647,022 101,181
— non-controlling interests — FEFRRER (1,274) 6,495
645,748 107,676
Total comprehensive income for the year H{EARNEE 2 2R A %8
attributable to:
— owners of the Company — ARAIRE 656,794 94,467
— non-controlling interests — R (30) 7,002
656,764 101,469
Basic earnings per share BIREREF] 16 HK$8.15 HK$1.27

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R
At 81 March 2013
R20134F3 H31H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Interests in associates
Available-for-sale investments
Loans receivable
Deposits paid for acquisition of

an investment property

Deposit and prepayments for a

life insurance policy

Current assets

Properties held for development
for sale

Properties held for sale
Investments held for trading
Trade and other receivables
Bills receivable
Loans receivable
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bills payable
Tax payable
Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

FRBEE

nE - BERRE
REME
B DRI
ARHERE
P E R
BAREDEZEN
Re
—HASREZESE
SRR

mBEE

RELMEERME

RELEME
RERERE

B 5 R H A YRR
KRR

FERE R
RITESREAS

=V

B 5 R EMRENTIE
ANER 3

FEfHIR
FHEMRITEE

mBEEFE

Notes

Wiz

18
19

20
21

22

23

24
25
26
21
27

28
29

30

31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET THT
(Restated) (Restated)

(&51) (&71)

47,802 62,379 2,162
2,437,501 1,632,626 1,165,675
— — 184,485

35,965 35,530 46,293
31,927 5,725 9,300

- 18,000 —

9,709 — —
2,562,904 1,754,260 1,407,915
714,636 344,256 538,830
66,445 186,757 —
287,564 149,009 96,948
28,269 31,031 2,451
153 — —
56,447 53,721 44,515
340,869 403,369 73,851
1,494,383 1,168,143 756,595
56,868 58,768 49,839

- 3,687 —

29,940 39,321 24,092
30,878 17,308 —
117,686 119,084 73,931
1,376,697 1,049,059 682,664
3,939,601 2,803,319 2,090,579

54 Easyknit International Holdings Limited

2012/13 Annual Report




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continueq)

LEBBIR TR @)

At 81 March 2013
R2013#3 531 H

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

BAL R
AR
i

Equity attributable to owners of the ARAFRER D

Company
Non-controlling interests

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Secured bank borrowings

(5 $a
IR

FRBAE
ELHRAE
HFERRTEE

31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011

Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Hist FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)

(E71) (E731)

&l 7,942 7,942 7,942
2,743,420 2,252,801 2,082,637

2,751,362 2,260,743 2,090,579

450,562 168,116 —

3,201,924 2,428,859 2,090,579

32 12,988 12,989 —
30 724,689 361,471 —
737,677 374,460 —

3,939,601 2,803,319 2,090,579

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 181 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim Lui Yuk Chu
BRA BEEHk
Director Director
EF EF

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZ2013%F 3 431 HIFFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
HRDARRER
Investment Property Non-
Share Share Capital  Translation Special  Contributed  revaluation  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
k& g EAGE ENGE RhIRE BABE REEGRE NEEGRE RitERl B8 FoREE 1]
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT FAT AT 7T T T 71 713 713 71 AT
(note &) (note b) (note ¢) (note d)
(Wita) (Hitb) (itc) (itd)
At 1 April 2011 RO E4A18
(originally stated) (RE250) 7,942 218,330 196,565 24575 9,800 200,931 26,548 25,669 1,232,265 1,962,631 - 1,962,631
Adjustments (nofe 2) a8 - = = 1240 = = = 2009 1uT9 127948 - 19
A1 April 2011 (restated) 20114518
(E31) 7,942 218,330 196,565 25,815 9,800 220,937 26,548 27,698 1,356,944 2,090,579 - 2,090,579
Change i fair valug of THHERE
avallable-for-sale AYESE
investments = = = = = = (10,763 = = (10,763) = (10,763)
Exchange differenceon ~ #E514E2
translation of foreign EiZR
operations - - - 1,989 - - - - - 1,989 507 2,49
Share of translation reserve  AHAEERF 2
of associates B = - - 2,060 - - - - - 2,060 - 2,060
Profit for the year TERER - - - - - - - = 101,181 101,181 6,495 107,676
Total comprehensive income 2K 2 2 A
(expense) for the year (%) 48 - - - 4,049 - - (10,763) - 101,181 94 467 7,002 101,469
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WENEAT
(note 33) H23) = = = = = = = = = - 292,590 292,590
Acquisition of addtional  MENEATZ
interests in subsidiaries  EJMER - - - - - - - - 93,169 93,169 (131,476) (38,307)
Dividends e - - - - - - = = {7412) (17472 = (17472)
- - - - - - - - 75,697 75,697 161,114 236,811
At 31 March 2012 and R201253A318
1 Aprl 2012 (restated) k20125
4A1B(Z5) 7,942 218,330 196,565 29,864 9,800 200,931 15,785 27,698 1,533,822 2,260,743 168,116 2,428,859
Change in far value of ~ FRHEREY
available-for-sale ATEEY
investments - - - - - - 435 - - 435 - 435
Exchange difference on £
translation of foreign
operations - - - 2,331 - - - - - 2,331 1,244 3,575
Exchange difference released 1532 AIHE
upon deregistration of non- ~ 2\EE
wholly owned subsidiaries ~ BRE}EE - - - (5,560) - - - - - (5,560) - (5,560)
Fair value gain on leasehold 41112 8EZ
properties upon transferto  (ENEZ
investment properties AFHERE - - - - - - - 12,566 - 12,566 = 12,566
Profit for the year KERET - - - - - - - - 647,022 647,022 (1,274) 645,748
Total comprehensive income X5 2 2 A
(expense) for the year (Fx)eE - - - (3.229) - - 435 12,566 647,022 656,794 (30) 656,764
Proceeds received from rights & —FHBATZ
issue of a subsidiary fREEE - - - - - = - = (365) (365) 66,361 67,99
Deregistration of non-wholly ~ #$5E2 EHBA
owned subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - (4,07) (4,067)
Deemed disposal of partial  FE%EE 2
interest ina subsidiay  REALEHS
without a loss of control KBRS
(note ¢) (i ite) - - - (289) - - - = (162345) (162,639 218,182 55,549
Divdends e - - - - - - = = (A7) (3.177) = (.17)
- - - (288) - - - - (165,887) (166,175) 282,476 116,301
At 31 March 2013 R2013E3A31R 7,942 218,330 196,565 26,347 9,800 220,931 16,220 40,264 2,014,951 2,151,362 450,562 3,201,924
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

R

For th

EREZEHR @

e Year Ended 31 March 2013

Et 2201343 A31 HIFFEZ

Notes:

(@)

(©)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the

reduction of the share capital of the Company in October 2006.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the companies
now forming the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation prior to the

listing of the Company’s shares in 1995.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from

the reduction of certain reserves of the Company in August 2004.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group was arisen from (i) the
gain on revaluation of certain leasehold properties of the Group, and (i)
share of the gain on revaluation of prepaid lease payments and property,
plant and equipment of the Group’s former associates, both arising from
the transfer of the Group’s leasehold properties or associates’ prepaid
lease payments and property, plant and equipment to investment

properties in prior years.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, Easyknit Enterprises Holdings
Limited (“Easyknit Enterprises), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
placed new shares with net proceeds of HK$55,549,000 to non-
controlling shareholders of Easyknit Enterprises. As a result, the Group’s
equity interests in Easyknit Enterprises were diluted from 72.36% at 1
April 2012 to 43.52% at 31 March 2013. The excess of carrying amount
of non-controlling interests over the net proceeds and the proportionate
share of translation reserve, amounting to HK$162,345,000, is charged

to accumulated profits.

Liri

(d)

(€)

7k 2% 159 B 442 1 A PR 2 )

AEE 2 BERRHRRER 2006 F 10 A & AHIR
FEEAE 2R

AEE 2 HBIRERRAAREHTRAEELRR
FRAER A S B (IRBEA DR AR FE 1995 F AT Z
SEEHA)BTSARAIZRABRBRBRHEELE
o

AKEZBABBRRRARFIR 20044 8 A HIH
ATHBZER -

AREMEERREREE () A REETHRONE
AN RN SEII): ’éﬁ NG

Z B R (i) P 2R
ERBEEME  BERLSBZEGBEE  HAERAR

BEFEASECHONEIHERR < ANEE
FRERF -~ BifE MR GEREREY R

)‘5@%&52013@3)% BNHLEFE  ARRI—[M¥HFE
EMBRR  kBEEXEEERAD(KEREE]D
fid & 7 A% 1;3%%%:%%#& %R R FT1SRIBF
/55,549,000 7T c Elt - REBRKERE X
ZERAN2012F4 /18 272.36% % 8 = R
201393 A31H243.52% ° iR 2 RE
EARLL 18 B F 58 IR L Bl 548 2 RETE K 64
#BH 162,345,000 7571 B 515 FII R 0Bk

2012/13 4E$#i
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= AN o ~—1
:%',T': = | Iﬁﬁ/)lbié‘%
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Income tax recognised in profit
or loss

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation of premium and
other expenses charged on a
life insurance policy

Dividend income from listed
investments

Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on derecognition of non-
wholly owned subsidiaries

Unrealised (gain) loss on fair
value changes of investments
held for trading

Share of results of associates

Loss on disposal of associates

Gain from a bargain purchase

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Increase in properties held for
development for sale

Decrease in properties held for sale

Increase in investments held for
trading

Decrease in trade and other
receivables

(Increase) decrease in bills receivable

Increase in loans receivable

Increase (decrease) in trade and other
payables

(Decrease) increase in bills payable
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2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Restated)

(E7)

645,748 107,676
1,723 2,934
(5,246) (2,590)
10,274 2,995
1,801 927

93 -
(6,817) (4,300)
(487,051) (5,302)
(21,530) -
(3,216) 22,645
- 14,608

- 119,547
— (211,089)
135,779 48,051
(365,629) (63,230)
120,312 43,733
(135,339) 97)
3,039 33,403
(153) 647
(28,928) (5,631)
4,239 (28,551)
(3,687) 3,687
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HERESRER®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B 2201343 /31 A1t FE
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mzt FET FET
(Restated)
(E51)
Cash (used in) from operations (AR)REE2Z2HE (270,367) 32,012
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERBERNEHR (5,314) -
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REBBNEH 58 1
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid RN = (1,340)
Overseas tax paid BRHENA (203) (341)
Overseas tax refunded REBINIE 63 =
Dividend received from investments ~ H{EEEHRE MK
held for trading 6,255 3,098
Net cash (used in) from operating (AR)REEEES RE T8
activities (269,508) 33,430
Cash flows from investing activities REREZH HETE
Withdrawal of bank deposits with REBA=EAZHBTER
original maturity of more than
three months 67,049 -
Interest received MEWA 5,123 2,590
Dividend received from available- At HERE ZEHRRE
for-sale investments 562 1,202
Acquisition of investment properties BAREYDE (261,626) (164,031)
Placement of bank deposits with B = (8 A 282 RITEH
original maturity of more than
three months (67,049) -
Payment for a life insurance policy H—TBAZREZNAR (9,956) -
Purchase of property, plant and BAME - BEREE
equipment (9,553) (875)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS K& A F 33 - 176,112
Acquisition of additional interests in WeBE B & N B) 2 BB OME =
associates - (21,694)
Deposits paid for acquisition of an BAREYEZENES
investment property - (18,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (AR REES v B L FE (275,450) (24,696)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continueq)
SmEHERER®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B 220133 /31 HIL F
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(Z5)
Cash flows from financing activities BRBEEE HERE
Bank borrowings raised ESRIEE 405,910 389,400
Proceeds received from rights issue B —EMBLAAIER 2 Fi57E
of shares of a subsidiary 67,996 -
Net proceeds from partial disposal REREEH 2 HEHHRBAR
of a subsidiary without a loss of ZIBHIEFE
control 55,549 12,536
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (29,122) (10,621)
Interest paid BRFIE (15,025) (2,995)
Dividends paid BERRE (3,177) (17,472)
Acquisition of additional interests in ~ UREE KB A AIZEIMER
subsidiaries - (50,843)
Net cash from financing activities REBMELH L FE 482,131 320,005
Net (decrease) increase in cashand ~ BE&RERBRE O ) EINFE
cash equivalents (62,827) 328,739
Cash and cash equivalents at FURe RERRS
beginning of the year 403,369 73,851
Effect of foreign exchange rate SMEEEZE , ZE
changes 327 779
Cash and cash equivalents at end FrAe RERRS  BROTERERS
of the year, represented by bank
balances and cash 340,869 403,369
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B AR R M EE

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B Z2013%F 331 HitFE

1.

GENERAL

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”), which is the functional currency

of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 39.

—REH

XEBREBEARAR(TARANERRE
EMRLAZHRRERARF] ERHEEL
BARZMARAA(TBMIM)ERLT -
ARBZEMPERIU R TELEBHD
RAEHRIARER ] —HARE -

RAeBBRRERE T ETHKS] %
[HKD]) - MR ASARE 2L

ARA—HREZERAT - KREZHE
AR EBREZXBEENMES9 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I E L EEAE )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B2 20133731 AIFFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERFERKET 2B RBMK
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REEN(EBUBHEEE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) all)
In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries RAFEE KA RENB AR (RE AL
(collectively referred as the “Group”) have applied the following BoEREtetmae((F8e:tma
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of @ )VEBZATHEREB Z2EATER
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA?). AR o
HKFRSs that become effective for the year: RAEFEERZ BBHBREER
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets BAECHENZ12Y BEHE: KDEBEAE
(BETR)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — ERUBRLEN LRI BE - cREEER
Transfers of financial assets ENEHCCHES)
HKFRSs that have been early adopted for the year: RARFEECRERMNZEAM BRG]
Amendments to HKAS 1 As part of the annual improvements to BACIEAE1R  R2012FBAER2009F —
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle issued (BFTE) 11 FER ERHBREE
in 2012 Al FEBERD
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements, BAVKHREENE  GAHMBHRE  ARTHERNE
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 joint arrangements and disclosure of 105 BANESR  HERESCER: BFEE
interests in other entities: Transition ERAENRRE %5
guidance BRHREEAE
WEACHEY)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements ERNBRSENE  SAMBER
10%;
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements BRI BREES HEZH
F1%
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities R BRE S REMERER . HE
g12%
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate financial statements BEEHENETR BUMBER
(K011 4 ET)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in associates and joint EAGHENE8% BELATRALAERE
ventures (2011 EE3T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RN S T )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the above new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial
statements” (as part of the Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 — 2011 cycle issued in June 2012).

Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012,
the title of which is “Annual improvements to HKFRSs (2009 —
2011 cycle)”. The effective date of these amendments is annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
amendments to HKAS 1 in advance of the effective date (annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement
of financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information in
the third statement of financial position and that related notes
are not required to accompany the third statement of financial

position.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments
to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” for
the first time, which has resulted in a material effect on the
information in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 1 April 2011. In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 1,
the Group has therefore presented a third statement of financial

position as at 1 April 2011 without the related notes.

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets”

Under the amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery
of underlying assets”, investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
“Investment property” are presumed to be recovered through
sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the

presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland
China (“PRC”), Hong Kong and Singapore, which are measured
using the fair value model. For the purpose of application
of the amendments to HKAS 12, the directors reviewed the
Group’s investment properties portfolios as at 1 April 2012 and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties situated in
Hong Kong and Singapore amounting to HK$1,468,469,000 are
not held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, and that the presumption set

out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted.

2.

FERFIE R KB 2 BB
RELEA([BEMBEREE
Al )

RAFE AEBEAEREBSTENE
125 (BRI A)RIERIE - WEIEEEE] -
HR20MF4A1B 2R EHBMRARITH
BRBREATVE - BESBGHENE
SUBETA) - AEEE L 2 514 BE M AR B bt
HZ2011F4 A1 AEZFHEMRAE »

BEREENE12FK (BT R)ELED
B REHREE ]

BEEEGTERE12HFUETR) R
B ROAEEE] RRABGIERF 40
RIRENE I FARFERAGTEBZREY
ERFAEEERERERRAVEBLET
PAlgE - BRIEERBAES TR TR o

AEEREMELMNPEARLRE ([
Bl EBERFME  KARXAFEERXG
B -RTERAEBGHEANE12RUEL]
) BEEER2012F4 51 BAEENE
BMERE  TRAREELRES R
B2 E Y XS5 R 1,468,469,000 % 7T I
FEEREERAD) ENZERENEL
FERBERNMEEEAREE  MBEE:
RERIE 125 (BT AR) 2 BB W AR HR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RN S T )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets” (continued)

On the other hand, the Group has rebutted the presumption in
respect of the Group’s remaining investment properties situated
in the PRC amounting to HK$164,157,000 as at 1 April 2012 as
such properties are depreciable and are held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Accordingly, the adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 has
no impact on the deferred tax liabilities in respect of the Group’s

investment properties in the PRC.

As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS 12,
the Group does not recognise any deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of the investment properties in Hong Kong and
Singapore as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of these investment properties. Previously, the Group
recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value of these
investment properties on the basis that the entire carrying

amounts of such properties were recovered through use.

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied retrospectively.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I E L EEAE )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
EZ2013F 331 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

2.

Summary of the effect of the above change in

accounting policy

The effect of the change in accounting policy described above

on the results for the current and preceding periods by line

items presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income is as follows:

Increase in loss on disposal of associates
Decrease in share of losses of associates
Increase in gain from a bargain purchase

Decrease in taxation charge

Net increase in profit for the year

B AN A BRI AN
VAR (Sl —/NCT) 3=V
RE—IRIREYE 2 WaEm
18 B SR >

NG [ )52 NI AR

FEF 3T R RIER] 2 BB I 1§
HER((ERTBREE
Al )

THREHBREB BB
LRt BREHHAKERNAHE &A1 H

AFEEEARRR REBRERZTEN
T

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FE FET
- (5,093)

— 3,349

- 4,813
86,459 2,393
86,459 5,462
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mE

U E S EL A )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Summary of the effect of the above change in
accounting policy (continued)

The effect of the change in accounting policy described above

2. ERHMER

4K

nr

BRI 2B RN

HEZEA(BRUBHEE

EUNDIED

Liig

LR EFBRREGHARE 2 M HRRER

ARREH N ERE(E)

on the financial positions of the Group as at the end of the T%J:—ﬁﬁﬂﬁliﬁméﬁﬁq » BN20124 3 A 31
immediately preceding financial year, i.e. 31 March 2012, is as AWM :
follows:
As at
31 March As at
2012 31 March
(originally 2012
stated) (restated)
H2012F R2012%F
3A81H Adjustments 3HS81H
(REZ5) AE (E51)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEAE 15,241 (15,241) =
Deferred tax liabilities ELRIBEE (166,436) 153,447 (12,989)
Total effects on net assets HEEFE 202 (151,195) 138,206 (12,989)
Accumulated profits 25 F 1,402,614 131,208 1,533,822
Translation reserve b 5 A 28,619 1,245 29,864
Property revaluation reserve o EEA 25,669 2,029 27,698
Non-controlling interests Pl g 164,392 3,724 168,116
Total effects on equity HiEm o 22 1,621,294 138,206 1,759,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I E L EEAE )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZE2013F 3431 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERFERRETIZEBNE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BEER([EAMBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued) ,JH)({%“)
Summary of the effect of the above change in PRETHREH o ERL (F)

accounting policy (continued)

The effect of the change in accounting policy described above g BUREBH A EE 2 BN
on the financial positions of the Group as at the beginning of the RHERAE - 12011 F4 A1 B 2 F 20
comparative period, i.e. 1 April 2011, is as follows: T~
As at
1 April As at
2011 1 April
(originally 2011
stated) (restated)
R2011 4 R 2011 F
4818 Adjustments 4811
(REZ5I) S (&31)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Interests in associates AN £y 182,740 1,745 184,485
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEAE (126,203) 126,203 -
Total effects on net assets HEEFR M E 56,537 127,948 184,485
Accumulated profits 257 1,232,265 124,679 1,356,944
Translation reserve b 5 24,575 1,240 25,815
Property revaluation reserve MEEGHRHE 25,669 2,029 27,698
Total effects on equity HEm s 22 1,282,509 127,948 1,410,457
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MR @)
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B Z2013%F 331 HitFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERHFERKEBIIZ2EBHE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING WMEER(BBRBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) All) @)
Impact on basic earnings per share HEREAEFz2HE
2013 2012
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Basic earnings per share before R GRRE AR AR
adjustments 7.06 1.22
Adjustments arising from application REEABBESELE 125
of amendments to HKAS 12 in respect (BRIR)BRAKREME L
of deferred taxes on investment BRI 2 HE
properties 1.09 0.05
Reported basic earnings per share 23 FRERZEF 8.15 1.27
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B ZE2013F 3 A31 HIFFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation —
Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor controls an investee when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. To meet the definition
of control in HKFRS 10, all of the three criteria, including (a)
an investor has power over an investee, (b) the investor has
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and (c) the investor has the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns,
must be met. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. Much more guidance has
been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has
control over an investee. In particular, detailed guidance has
been established in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor that
owns less than 50 per cent of the voting shares in an investee
has control over the investee. For example, in assessing whether
an investor with less than a majority of the voting rights in an
investee has a sufficiently dominant voting interest to meet the
power criterion, HKFRS 10 requires the investor to take into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including the size
of the investor’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders, rights
arising from other contractual arrangements, and any additional
facts and circumstances, including voting patterns at previous

shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”
(continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 10 has affected the Group’s accounting
for the interest in Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit Enterprises”).

As at 31 March 2012, the Group controlled Easyknit Enterprises
under HKAS 27 (Revised 2008) because the Group owned more
than 50% of voting rights of Easyknit Enterprises by virtue of
the voting rights directly owned by the Group. Accordingly, the
Group had accounted for Easyknit Enterprises as a subsidiary.

On 18 February 2013, the Group’s equity interest dropped to
below 50% after placing of new shares by Easyknit Enterprises.
The Group’s shareholding in Easyknit Enterprises dropped from
72.36% as at 1 April 2012 to 43.52% as at 31 March 2013.

In the current year, the directors examined the effect of the
application of HKFRS 10 taking into account all the relevant
facts and circumstances, including the Group’s dominant voting
interest in Easyknit Enterprises, dispersion of holding of other
vote holders, participation rates of shareholders and voting
patterns in previous shareholders’ meetings and concluded
that the Group did not lose control over Easyknit Enterprises
since 18 February 2013 despite its shareholding therein has
been less than 50% and that Easyknit Enterprises qualified as a
subsidiary of the Group under HKFRS 10 for the year ended 31
March 2013. Accordingly, the financial information of Easyknit
Enterprises is consolidated for the whole of the year ended 31
March 2013. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, in
accordance with the transitional provisions set out in HKFRS
10, the early adoption of HKFRS 10 during the current financial
year ended 31 March 2013 does not result in restatement of
the comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2012
even though the Group’s interest in Easyknit Enterprises was
below 50% before October 2011 (see note 33 for details), since
Easyknit Enterprises is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group
as at 31 March 2012 under both HKFRS 10 and the previous
standard HKAS 27.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

E 220133 531 HILEE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED FE T8 | RAER] < BB B 78

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. The
application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests (note 39). As at 31 March 2013 and 2012,
the Group did not have interests in any joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structure entities.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RN S T )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle
issued in June 2012

The “Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle”
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include the
amendments to HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”
and the amendments to HKAS 32 “Financial instruments:

Presentation”.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified as
property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition
of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory

otherwise.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and transaction
costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for in

accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities” and amendments to HKFRS
7 “Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities”

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and

“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or

similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods
within those annual periods. The disclosures should also be
provided retrospectively for all comparative periods. However,
the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective

application required.
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R MR )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:
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e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with

only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or

loss was presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
“Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS

13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and may affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RN S T )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive

income is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when

the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact

on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,

as explained in accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the
Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all

the following:

o power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee);

o exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

e the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its

returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
EZ201343 431 Hi-FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Company has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous

shareholders’ meetings.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with those used by other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately

from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes”

and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

e |iabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy

below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations” are measured in

accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.
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(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is

made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Interests in associates (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.

Where a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to

the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBRRME @

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B ZE2013F3 431 HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the

following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Dividend income from equity investments is recognised when

the Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own
use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost
less recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

If an investment property becomes an item of property, plant
and equipment because its use has changed as evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation, the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use becomes the property’s

deemed cost for subsequent accounting.

The Group transfers a property from property held for
development for sale to property, plant and equipment when
there is a change in use to hold the property for owner-
occupation rather than for sale in the ordinary course of
business. The carrying value of the property at the date
of change in use becomes the property’s deemed cost for

subsequent accounting.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction

for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for the properties
transferred from property, plant and equipment, which are
measured at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction. Investment
properties under construction are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Any difference between the fair
value of the investment properties under construction and their
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve

will be transferred directly to accumulated profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

The Group transfers a property from property held for
development for sale to investment property when there is a
change in use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for
capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course
of business, which is evidenced by the commencement of an

operating lease to another party.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the item is derecognised.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified as current

assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including
purchase costs of the properties for development and
development costs, are capitalised and included as properties

held for development until such time when they are completed.
Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are completed properties and are

classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

3.

FESHBER 2

REWE(E)

EMEREREABERRES K REE
ARE ERRZ—TRREERE Mk
E-RELEEALENE  FAEBEEHEF
FHEERRNEBENEZEREDNE -

BRENERLERAERENEKATERE
MEEREEZSENETGEERRZLER
HEBUHER - BURRREEMES 2 [
YagBERRHERSIRFEREE IR
HE 8 E)Hat ABUBHER R < Bt
A o

BEHERRME

FEHEERMEIIERBEELZRAR
A& HEME L BEE IR o

BERVMEZAAN(BRBAZRRYEZKAR
BREA) FREMMERIARERRDE -
BEEZTHRERAL

BEHENR

REHENERC TR ERMERIERE
BE o KRR A ZRFEZBREEFIR o

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B 201343 H31 HIFZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

e jtis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

FTEETBXR @)

EMIAE)
THEE(E)
EEMEZ

BERARZRTECRERE ZEHMAAR
DEHEBHREZ M BRAZITE - BEFX
RAERE BT MERE BT A F % (fH
ER)EREHEAYHFRRRS KA
BAXNSBBREEABERERNEZME
ERRMEEE XHRAREMEE T
I EEPNREERE 2 REFEZME -

EBTAZBATIRERMEEER - ME
BABRAERSRBRFEZRAFETA
Ba 2 SREERIFRIP

BRAFEFABRIEREE

RAVEFABSZEREEDNRFEEER
TREE -

ETIERT  £BEENFERERE :

TEAREHAHEMBEA R

s EBRASEARERAEAHANERES
EANEREAZCHAISBTARRZ
B K

o EBRAEEREBIEREFSTAZITE
THo

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B 201343 H31 HIFZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy,
trade and other receivables, bills receivable, loans receivable,
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets

below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,

loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss

(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loans receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
or loan receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of

amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment
loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bills

payable and secured bank borrowings) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised

in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

3.

FESHBER#)

B{E

RBERR  AREERNEBVEEZIRE
B UEEREAEATRBTIZSEEDR
RRESE WEEAZSHREE K
ATRREE BB S BAETE R EBE
(E) - W—BEBEZ At TRESHEER
HEmEE  IZEEZREERAREZER
WE G o HEREREAER /SR -

MR ERREGEE  REEEZEEES
0 LSBT 2 AR E S 4 -
%2 EABETERBHNEREERNBEFE
It ERRREB BT 2 BEE - RES

BELBENERZKA -

&
®

s
3m

mé}
B
PN

M&D)a
aJJJ>A

BRI SBER 2 MBHRRE - A&
EEBIUSNERUOMNE)ETLZRS
Az EREXNBERENEEN
ETREZTBEBEREMER
c RIMEHR - UINEFIE B
AZEREXSMHE - BRLFE
SR R IASNESIME 2 SFE IR B H A FEE
BEERAZERAEXEMAE - RELKA
BIASMNEHE 2 FERIRA METEHRE

i

\
P
)
K

o
=9 o
iy
»

b=113
Nt
i
Tl
e

N2
ot
cul
K?r?

Ly

pin]
sfHom 37

\
i

X
b=11l3
xur

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss

for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to

non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the

expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model.

Retirement benefit scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme,
state-sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC
government or the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as expenses when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contribution.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

(continued)
(a) Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group’s investment properties portfolios
and concluded that while the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are
depreciable, they are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation arising from these investment properties located
in Hong Kong and Singapore, the management determined
that the presumption that these investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through

sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC,
the management concluded that they are depreciable and
are being held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred taxation arising from investment properties
located in the PRC, the management determined that
the presumption that investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is
rebutted. The potential deferred tax impact to the Group
is insignificant and no deferred tax liability arising from the
change in fair value of investment properties located in the

PRC was recognised at the end of the reporting period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

(continued)
(b) Control over Easyknit Enterprises

As disclosed in note 2, Easyknit Enterprises is considered
as a subsidiary of the Group upon adopting of HKFRS 10
although the Group’s shareholding of Easyknit Enterprises
decreased from 72.36% at 1 April 2012 to 43.52% at 31
March 2013. The directors assessed whether or not the
Group has control over Easyknit Enterprises based on
whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of Easyknit Enterprises unilaterally.
In making their judgment, the directors considered the
Group’s dominant voting interest relative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders, and
any additional facts and circumstances, including the
participation rates of shareholders and voting patterns
in previous shareholders’ meetings and concluded that
the Group did not lose control over Easyknit Enterprises
since 18 February 2013 despite its shareholding therein
has become less than 50% and that Easyknit Enterprises
qualified as a subsidiary of the Group under HKFRS 10 for
the year ended 31 March 2013. Accordingly, the financial
information of Easyknit Enterprises is consolidated for the
whole year ended 31 March 2013.
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EZ20134%3 31 HIFFEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

(c)

(d)

Impairment allowance on loans receivable

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. A considerable amount of judgment is
required in estimating the expected discounted future
cash flows. If the actual future cash flows are less than the
original estimated cash flows of loans receivable, additional
allowances would be required.

Impairment loss on properties held for development for
sale/properties held for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale/properties held for
sale amounting to HK$781,081,000 (2012: HK$531,013,000)
with reference to current market environment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net realisable
value, as appropriate. Appropriate write-down for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit or loss when
the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates of
net realisable value are based on the evidence available at
the time the estimates are made, and the amounts of the
properties held for development for sale/properties held
for sale are expected to realise or recover. Actual realised
amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease
or an increase in the net realisable value of the properties
held for development for sale/properties held for sale and
additional write-down or additional reversal of impairment
loss previously recognised may be required.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of secured bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as raising of bank

borrowings.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. ®MIE

a. Categories of financial instruments a. ERMIEBZER
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERREGE(BERS
and cash equivalents) RERBRE)
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 REMEYGRIE 18,103 23,186
— Bills receivable - BWREE 153 =
— Deposit and prepayments for — —EABREZ
a life insurance policy e RERNR 9,709 =
— Loans receivable — BKER 88,374 59,446
— Bank balances and cash - RITHER KRS 340,869 403,369
457,208 486,001
Fair value through profit or loss BRATER A B
— Investments held for trading - BEEERA 287,564 149,009
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESmERE
— Available-for-sale investments — A ERE 35,965 35,530
Financial liabilities EHMEE
Amortised cost R
— Trade and other payables — B REMEMKE 40,200 35,262
— Bills payable - ENEE = 3,687
— Secured bank borrowings — BIEARTEE 755,567 378,779
795,767 417,728
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, deposit
and prepayments for a life insurance policy, trade and
other receivables, bills receivable, loans receivable, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, bills payable
and bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to certain bank balances, bank borrowings
and variable-rate loans receivable. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate loans receivable and deposits and
prepayments for a life insurance policy. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to such interest rate risk, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant

interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising

from bank borrowings.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for certain
bank balances, bank borrowings and variable-
rate loans receivable. The analyses were prepared
assuming these balances outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. 10 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. If interest rate had been 10
basis points higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 March 2013 would decrease or
increase by HK$633,000 (2012: HK$25,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure

during the year.

6. TR T H®)

b. HEEREEBERBKE)

T ACY)

(i)

FIEmE (&)

2

BURE DT

C:

NTZBBESMHERE TR
1T BITEERZEEKRE
RZFERBITE - HHlADH
BB ERRE AR LR
SEEFE - 10HE LI K
BMORKREBRETEFIR 2z 8
AEEE - WFIERZRHIER10
BAEEEMAAEEMARERT
2 AEEREE2013F3 A 31
BIEEE 2 RiBEF R D58
$n633,000%8 7T (2012 % : 25,000
ABIL)

EEERA  ZBBREIMALN
RERRBENXRER EREH
R TR S R LR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RN S T )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B2 20133431 HIFFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. E@MIE#®
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. PXEMREBRBEREEZ)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) e A AC)
(i) Currency risk (i)  EEEE
Certain subsidiaries of the Company have sales HRARARETHEBAR - AEE
denominated in currencies other than their functional LAThEE B DASN 2 ¥ 5I1(E - BhfE
currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign REBAZINERG - NEBE
currency risk. All of the Group’s purchases are REHUEEEE 2 EKT
denominated in the group entities’ functional currency. & o
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign SEEBNREHRAINESIEZ
currency denominated monetary assets at the end of EREEZREEMT
the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =K
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR 13 171 - =
United States dollars 37T
(“USD”) 88,774 55,359 93 86
Euro BT - 10,199 - -
HKD BT 146 87 - =

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t

109




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. M ITE#)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HXEMEBEBEREEZ)
(continued)

110

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on HKD against RMB, USD and Euro for the
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and

liabilities.

As HKD is pegged to USD, the financial impact on

exchange risk is expected to be insignificant.

The following table details the group entities’
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit where functional currency of
the relevant group entities weaken 5% against the
relevant foreign currency. For a 5% strengthening
of functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit, and the

balances below would be negative.

Market risk (continued) hGER (&)
(i) Currency risk (continued) (i) EEEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis BURE D

AEEFINEIIEZEREEREA
BEZEXEREBERBAETLA
K%« TR AR

TRHAJIEEERER ZNEES
SAARSNETHER RES% < &8
BERZHRE 5% REREHE
KA REAEEE A o BRED
MEBERFRUINESE L B
BB YRERBBE TR
EXR25% 2% - THIEHRTAE
HEEER RSN L ARING
FZfE5% FTE B R MIE N - fid 48
HEEER GBI ARING
FHESY% - BEEBFEREER
MRZEE  mMIEHEEREA
8o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R MR )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)

6. TRMITH®)

b. H¥EREERERIE#E)

mEEE (%)

(i) EEER(E)

RMB Impact Euro Impact
AR zEE 56 a2
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Increase in profit pieglb=yill 1 9 - 510

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposures
should the need arise. In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the currency
risk as the exposure at the end of the reporting period

does not reflect the exposures during the year.

AEBEREY BINEEPBRAREER R
e AT BEEERTERERBZINERR
FEERERTERLEAINERBAETY
e BRERR  ZBBRESNL AR
ERRER - RS HARRR T8 RRE AR

B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBRRME @

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles
and the Group has a team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group’s equity price risk is
concentrated on equity securities listed in Hong Kong
and these investments are diversified into several

different industries.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as investments held for trading had been 10% (2012:
10%) higher/lower, profit for the year ended 31 March
2013 would increase/decrease by HK$24,012,000
(2012: HK$12,442,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of investments held for trading.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2012:
10%) higher/lower, the investment revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by HK$3,597,000 (2012:
HK$3,553,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of available-for-sale investments.

ERT

b.

Bz

Z= U '=/

PHEBEREBRRBK#E)

LT AC )

(i)

EFEREER

FRAEERER L IRAE 5
BEAREAZESFEBER
BEABEA TRERE %&ﬁ
HaNEEZEREASEA B
ERERERREEREARER
mZER - AREZEHFERRE
BREFREB LT RAES - M
ZEREBEDHETRITE

BRENT

AT HBREDMRRENRE R
X2 B ERERERE -

WHEREEERE 2 EMRA
BHEITAEBHREHR/THEI0%
(2012F : 10%) " HEE B K
ERNFEZEDHETEZ2013
F3A31B L FERFEM R
24,012,000/ T(2012% :
12,442,000787T)

P ER SR E 2 ERARE
HTEABHEEATR10% (2012
F:10%)  AHHEREATE
ZEHUBBREEHHEELEM
/43,597,000 % 7T (20124 :
3,553,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZ201343 431 Hi-FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TMI A

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
at 31 March 2013 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group had concentration of credit risk in relation to
loans receivable amounting to HK$88,374,000 at 31 March
2013 (2012: HK$59,446,000). The largest borrower of the
Group by itself and together with the other four largest
borrowers of the Group accounted for approximately 17%
and 35% respectively (2012: 16% and 46% respectively)
of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March 2013. As at
31 March 2013, loans receivable under current assets
with carrying amount of HK$9,000,000 (2012: nil) are past
due for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable
based on historical experience. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management has reviewed the recoverable
amounts of the loans receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is

significantly reduced.

PHEBERERRRBEK#E)

EERERE

W75 REEITHN2013F3A318E
BERCHERAEMEEZELT AR
BrEY ¢ &aizERR ALK S MM
MK 2 ZEEEREE -

AEBER2013FIAA AL E
88,374,000% 7T(2012 FF : 59,446,000
ABT)ZERRERZEHEERR - K
EEZERERARTY RERH M
EEREEZBEARERADIAEAREE
R2013F3 A3 A ZERKER17% Rk
35% (20125 : H7I16% Kk 46%) ° I
201353 A31H  REEERRAE
R W AR AR FE £ 4858 2R R A T 57
TEE WNRBEEET ZEKER
ARTE 189,000,000/ 7T (2012 5 : &) 2
BREMAREL LG RENERSS -
AREZEERR  EEECTHERN
EWERZ TIREISE - LR TR
E¢EERARBEEREE Bt &
NAEERRAEERERERZEE
BBRERBRD -
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also had concentration of credit risk as
the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 March 2013 of
HK$15,347,000 (2012: HK$16,575,000) was due from a few
customers. At 31 March 2013, all trade receivables were
not yet past due except for approximately 6% (2012: 4%)
of these trade receivables were past due but not impaired
at the end of the reporting period. The management
considers that the credit risk of these trade receivables is

minimal as all are with long business relationship.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company continuously monitor the level of exposure to
ensure that follow-up actions and/or corrective actions
are taken promptly to lower exposure or even to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the management has reviewed
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on trade receivables is significantly

reduced.

In addition, the Group has credit risk on its liquid funds
at the end of the reporting period. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because majority of the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies and banks with good reputation.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) TRMTE»

PHEBEREBRRBK#E)

EERAE(E)

%2013%3)%31 B - A&EETEEH
ZIEERR AAEE 8 FEEZKE

15,347,000;%7%(2012¢ : 16,575,000
BIL)REEUETE - BRBEBHRL
6% (20125 : 4%) 2 B 5 & W &

EBHERBEIN  K2013F3 A31
A EBSEKFBMNABE &8
ERAZEE HEWFTBZEERRE
EREZHHERALEBHE -

AREEERRE KAAREFSRHER
RERKT - ARBRRRFRIRRE R,
KM EITEN AR R Z Bl S E Z e m B
HEXK - it EREERENEREH
AZMERNE HEE AT B S5 - DA
RGBS EA A EBEEE -
At - ARAIEERRAEERE HIE
WHEZ EERRERARD

o AEBERBERRERBDEE
FERR - ARAEZRR RPED
ZEERBRER - ARBHRZ ST BEK
BEREEFERBEIRSREETRREA
RIFEEZRIT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R MR )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations. The management also monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

At 31 March 2013, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of HK$562,500,000 (2012: HK$60,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

6. TRMITH®)

PHEBERERRRBEK#E)

HEEZEE

ARBECRREREME  FEELE
EEERMER—EKIRREANZR
ERBERREAEAREZEEMT
ERENEREECHALERAEST

HBEERER -

MN2013E3A31H AEEEAREHA
R 17 & 205 Z 562,500,000 7 71, (2012
4 : 60,000,000 7T) °

TRAFAEEZERABEZRBAH
BIEEAR - BEOTESRAEMNS - %
RIEA S B AT 4% B SR AR H R 2
ANEBRERTRREREIR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBRRME @

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B ZE2013F3 431 HILEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. M ITH%)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

UHRREZERRBRE)

Liquidity risk (continued) REELER(E)
Liquidity risk tables B E DR
Weighted ~ On demand
average or Total Carrying
effective less than 3 months 1t05 5t019 undiscounted  amounts at
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years years  cash flows 31 March
nEHs  REAAE ARRE  WSAYA
EBRZE  ORER  3EAEIE 1258 5E19F hEAT b i
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
% FAT FAT FAT AT AT FAT
2013 135
Non-derivative financial FiTEoHER
liabilities
Trade and other payables Z5REMERTE NA FER 34,989 5211 = = 40,200 40,200
Secured bank borrowings BERROEE 221 16,920 30,713 367,668 453,902 869,203 755,567
51,909 35,924 367,668 453,002 909,403 795,767
2012 0128
Non-derivative financial FiTEoHER
liabilities
Trade and other payables ZHRERENTE NA TER 3317 3,945 - - 35,262 35,262
Bills payable ENEE NA 7NER 3687 - - - 3,687 3687
Secured bank borrowings  AEAFAEE 13 5,530 16,589 88,477 318,122 428,718 378,779
40,534 20,534 88,477 318,122 467,667 417,728
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZ201343 431 Hi-FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) . ERIA®

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2013
and 31 March 2012, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank loans amounted to HK$ 6,619,000
and nil respectively. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans will be repaid three years
after the end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
At that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows will amount to HK$6,933,000 (2012: nil).

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

e  the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

PHEBERERRRBEK#E)

mEBELEE(E)

B REN ZEBEGERZRITERS
I Lz BB AT REBMT DR 3
A ZEERN - R2013F3 A31 AR
201263 A31H ' WERTERZA
£ARITHEEE 5 556,619,000 T &
moRERASE MBHR  EER
BRITTETEREEZRKANEEN
EERAUSROIETBREER B
NZEEBBHRBERR=FERER
RER - A A2 KA BEZHE R
#56,933,000 75T (2012 F « ) o

AR

TREENRERMEBBYATEZEEN
T

o BEERERKRRERRBMEZEE
SREELRNTEDNBENS LA
W HEMETE &

s HiteMEENTRMEEZATE
AR ERRX 2 EERA - R
BRARSREANMTMET

ARTERAR  EEKATIREGS
MHER eREERERABIRE
ERAQFERT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBRRME @

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. I E®

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

c. AVEME)

REaMBHRREER 2L FlEiE

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

TREERNAEREUAATEFEZ
SRMTEDN  RETHERZ AFER
EDBEIE3MH -

21QATEN B HREAGEE
A RN ERTSHE 2 A AER
BEH -

F2HMAVFEHENREEIRRE
AEZR(AEAER)LEZ R
BRiTE)BR 2B AEBGE 1R
ARIRERINEH o

FIMAFERENREERM
BREEXREZBABM LA
BRzmBER(TIBRERAR)

=]
T °

Level 1 and total

F1RRAE
HK$°000
FET
At 31 March 2013 M2013%3H31H
Available-for-sale investments AHERE
Listed equity securities iR AES 35,965
Investments held for trading FIEEERE 287,564
323,529
At 31 March 2012 M2012%3H31H
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Listed equity securities ERRAES 35,530
Investments held for trading RIEEERE 149,009
184,539
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mE

U E S EL A )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
EE20134F 3431 HILFE

7.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received
or receivable in respect of property sales and garment sales,
rental income from property leasing, interest income from loan
financing and building management fee income during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover is as follows:

Property sales MEHE
Garment sales B IRSEE
Rental income Bl A

Interest income from loan financing

Building management fee income BFERBHA

KEEXBEFNBLA

3

EXERFANKHEERAKHEE RAH
EHEREWA - REEFBEMS KA R
BFERERAZBERRERFRZ B8 -

AEBZEREANWE -
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
257,814 82,875
211,770 76,494
51,246 40,507
3,062 3,296
506 411
524,398 203,583

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM?”), for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered or services
provided. This is also the basis of organisation, whereby
the management has chosen to organise the Group around

differences in products and services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments include (i)
property investments, (ii) property development, (iii) investment
in securities, (iv) loan financing and (v) garment sourcing and

exporting.

DEEH

RERDERDBREFENE - 2H%
RECIERERREBRTHAL(ZE
RERRE D ZER  DEFREMRTH
RBR®ZEE - LT RABEE  BE
BRENLAGAREER RRG2ER -

AEEZRERZBADOTE  (VWER
B (MEER - (EHFRE - (v) S5
BR(V)ERBREOKK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

BHB2013F 3431 HIFFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EEH®
(@) Segment revenue and results (a) PEEXEERXESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and BRICEREBRNBOMAEE 2 £ X5
results by operating and reportable segment: REEMT :
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BF2013F3 531 HILFE
Garment
sourcing
Property Property  Investment Loan and
investments  development i securities financing exporting  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
RER
EE NERR #5RE LG HRAER s &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
Fiéx 7z 7z 7z 77 77 Féx
SEGMENT REVENUE ABERE
External sales hRHE 51,752 257814 - 3,062 211,770 - 524,398
Inter-segment sales' ABEREREE 2,551 = = = = (2,651) -
54,303 257,814 - 3,062 211,770 (2,551) 524,398
RESULT 1
Segment result NEE 530,384 92,882 15,433 2,817 (1,601) (40) 639,875
Unallocated corporate income ~ EAR 7 AF4A 5,335
Unallocated corporate BARZNARR
expenses (8,995)
(Gain on disposal of HENBAF s
subsidiaries 21,530
Finance costs BERA (10.274)
Profit before taxation BRER 647,471
* Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. * DEEBEHENRITTISEXHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RN S T )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZE 20133 /31 A FE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. nEERM#
(a) Segment revenue and results (continued) (a) DEEREREEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BZ2012F3 531 HILFE
Garment
sourcing
Property Property Investment Loan and
investments  development  in Securities financing exporting  Efiminations ~ Consolidated
&R
nERE VIESE ERRE E7RE AR i e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT TAT AT FAT
(Restated)
(&31)
SEGMENT REVENUE EERE
External sales IREE 40918 82875 - 3,296 76,494 - 203,583
Inter-segment sales* DREHREE 1,034 - - - - (1,034) -
41,952 82,875 - 3,296 76,494 (1,084) 203,583
RESULT ES |
Segment result gLt 28,557 35,381 (18,864) 3120 (3,899 52 14358
Unallocated corporate income BRI AT 2,1%
Unallocated corporate BALLRAAR
expenses (10,481)
Gain from a bargain RE-BR#NE
purchase Zha 211,089
Loss on disposal of HERERTL
associates ER (119,547)
Share of results of PERELARE
associates (14,608)
Finance costs HENA (2,99)
Profit before taxation A 110,610
* Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. * DEREBBEEURITIIZBEHNE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBRRME @

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
HZ2013F3 31 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned by
each segment without allocation of certain interest income,
corporate expenses, gain from a bargain purchase, loss on
disposal of associates, share of results of associates and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

8.

TEER#)

(a)

PTRERERKEE)

MRS ATl - KE DBz R E
AEEZ S BRAR - 7 BFERK
BOWEE BN BEFRADEET
FMEWA -~ RAIFAX - KB —EHH
Boha HEBERRZER  21h
BENREXENBERAE  BUREE
RERREER  FREFRIERRR
HEZ2E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR M )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B2 20133431 HIFFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EER®#
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and BRERERIBOMAEBZEER
liabilities by operating and reportable segment: BEMAT :
At 31 March 2013 H2013F3H31H
Garment
sourcing
Property Property Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting  Consolidated
RBR
NERE NEER #ERE LEE HOR% &8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET FET FEx FEx

ASSETS EE
Segment assets HRAE 2,441,009 194477 323,534 88,801 20,952 3,668,363
Bank balances and cash BEHRAS 340,869
Unallocated corporate EARINAEE

assets 47,555
Consolidated assets GREE 4,057,287
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilties HHRAE 29,844 14,860 20 125 5,692 50,541
Secured bank borrowings ~ AEAFTEE 755,567
Tax payable ERTE 29,940
Deferred tax liabilities EEfEEE 12,988
Unallocated corporate BN AFIEE

liabilities 6,327
Consolidated liabilities GRaf 855,363

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t 123




124

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
gy F I E L EEAE )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
EZ2013F 331 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8. 7EER»®

(b) 2EEEREEE)

At 31 March 2012 R2012F3H31H
Garment
sourcing
Property Property Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting  Consolidated
RER
IESE ELH:S EFRE EHHE AKX iFR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT A7 AT
(Restated)
(E51)
ASSETS BE
Segment assets HRAE 1,664,541 547,022 184,541 59,682 24,283 2,480,069
Bank balances and cash ~ F{TEHRAEE 403,369
Deferred tax assets BRHIEAE -
Unallocated corporate BRI NAEE
assets 38,965
Consolidated assets RREE 2,022,408
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities PRER 19,618 17,410 15 75 11,675 48,793
Secured bank borrowings ~ AEFRIEE 378,779
Tax payable FERHE 39,321
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEaR 12,989
Unallocated corporate LT N |-
liabilities 13,662
Consolidated liabilities Ak 493544
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e R T @)

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B ZE20134F 3 A31 i F/E
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

(c)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable

segments other than unallocated bank and cash

balances, deferred tax assets and assets used jointly

by operating and reportable segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable

segments other than bank borrowings, tax payable,

deferred tax liabilities and liabilities for which

operating and reportable segments are jointly liable.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Amounts included inthe ~ EERESE
measure of segment BEINE
assets or segment ERiEY
result: 8

Capital additions BARE

Depreciation of property, 1% * BER:R(E
plant and equipment e

Gain arising on changes in ~ REMEZATE
fair value of investment Elen
properties

Gain on changes in fair BEEEREY
values of investments ATER
held for trading Wi

SBER

(b) PHEEREME#E)

ERDBRBRRAADBEAERDEM

FE
=

FORENERRITRIA S AR BT
REEEAREERZHD HBHR
ERZEEIN  MBEEEEDEE

W AN = e aNvi
KERZFHHFL

FRIRITIEE - BNTEREERE
BEAREER 2R HPHFAE
ZAEI FBABEIRERE

RERDE

(c) HttaEER

BFE2013F3H31 HILFE

Garment

sourcing

Property Property  Investment Loan and
investments ~ development in securities financing exporting  Unallocated ~ Consolidated

RER
NERE NEER #ERE EXRE HORK 3R &8
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
77 FE7 77 FEr FiEr 77 77
261,626 9,553 - - - - 211,179
1,116 538 - - 137 10 1,801
487,051 - - - - - 487,051
- - 8,694 - - - 8,694
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e b S EL AT )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
EZ2013F 331 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Other segment information (continued)

8. 7EEN®

(c) HftoE&R (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE2012F3 531 AILFE
Garment
sourcing
Property Property Investment Loan and
investments  development in securities financing exporting  Consolidated
FER
NERE VEL:S EFRE ETRE HARKK &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FAT AT AT AT
Amounts included in the BEREHENE
measure of segment BEIHE
assets or segment result:  EEETE
okl
Capital additions BARE 182,031 875 - - - 182,906
Depreciation of property, ~ #1% - HERR
plant and equipment ZHE 502 171 - - 254 927
Gain arising on changes in ~ REWE 2 ATFE
fair value of investment e
properties 5,302 - - - - 5,302
Loss on changes in fair HIEEEREY
value of investments held A F/EEE)
for trading B - - 23,133 - - 23,133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR M )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B2 20133431 HIFFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. PEER=#
(d) Geographical information (d) HEFIEER

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of AEEZEBEDURNEB(EE)
domicile), PRC and Singapore. RET NS
The Group’s revenue from external customers based BINREPzEmZE D AEE 2 &
on location of its customers and information about the XERREELHMEMRE D DA
Group’s non-current assets (excluding available-for-sale SEZERBEE(TERENHREER
investments, loans receivable, deposit and prepayments for - RBWER —BEASREZEER
a life insurance policy and deferred tax assets), analysed BRNRREEHEEE) 2 AT

by the geographical area in which the assets are located,

are as follows:

Revenue from external Carrying amounts of
customers non-current assets
REMPREFZEXH FRBEEZREE
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong BB 304,591 122,258 2,126,177 1,367,748
PRC H 4,288 1,369 184,050 174,668
Singapore Fn 3,749 3,462 175,076 170,589
The United States of E351
America 187,307 66,070 - —
Europe BM 21,309 10,424 - -
Others Htt 3,154 = — =

524,398 203,583 2,485,303 1,713,005
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(e) Information about major customers
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are

as follows:

Customer A' EBEA

8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

TEER®
&) FEERFZEH

EFRERFERERASREAEXHE
B10% A EZEXBMT :

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
179,976 62,534

! Revenue from garment soucing and exporting.

GAIN ON DEREGISTRATION OF NON-
WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group deregistered
certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries which were acquired by
the Group in October 2011 (the “Ceased Subsidiaries”), and
the Group submitted the liquidation accounts of the Ceased
Subsidiaries to the relevant PRC tax bureau, paid all taxes
assessed and obtained approval of the tax bureau to cancel the
tax registration of the Ceased Subsidiaries prior to cancelling
the business registration with the Huzhou Administration for
Industry and Commerce in the current year. In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has no further obligations in respect
of the Ceased Subsidiaries. As such, all income tax payable
and other tax payable recorded by the Ceased Subsidiaries
prior to October 2011 amounting to HK$11,903,000, translation
reserve and non-controlling interests in respect of the Ceased
Subsidiaries amounting to HK$9,627,000 are released upon

deregistration of the Ceased Subsidiaries.

9.

' RERBREOKKZERE -

AHEFZENB AR 2 WS

REBZE2013F3 A3 ALEFE - AREFH
AEER2011F10AKBZETHZEMW
BRAI([ERIEMBAR] - RAFELER
HEAMT IRTREER 2 EEE A -
AEERRERIMNBARZEERETE
BMzHBEREE  IHMATEHERES
BB Z A UBUHE KR I B R A2 B
B BEFRA  AEERBEENC KM
BRAIZE—SEME - At - REHEKRILE
HBARRRRERIEMBARRR2011F
10 A RTS8 2 B/ e 5 M5 B S E b B A< B
TH11,903,0008 7 - BRAEKRIEMBEAR 2
RETHE N A R IR 9,627,000 T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e R R MR )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

10. LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATES

11.

At 31 March 2011, the Group had 31.70% equity interests in
Easyknit Enterprises, a company also listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Easyknit Enterprises and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “EE Group”) had been accounted for as
associates of the Group. As set out in note 33, the Group’s
interests in Easyknit Enterprises increased to 50.11% on 25
October 2011. The Company obtained control previously held
over the EE Group with effect from 25 October 2011, which
became subsidiaries of the Company. The Group’s interests in
the EE Group were re-measured based on the fair value of the
shares of Easyknit Enterprises held by the Group. Accordingly,
a loss on disposal of HK$119,547,000 (as restated) was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2012.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings not wholly
repayable within five years ZHE
Less: Amount capitalised in properties

BNz &®

held for development for sale

PNERAFENEBIEER 2 RITH

B REHERERRMF

10. HEBREQ R ZEER

R2011F3A31 A ' AEERHAKEEEL
31.70% RA#ER - TA—FEREBRMER L
M2 RA e KEEEREKNE AR (FE K
EEXSEUAEEZHEDRNE - 10
BIZES3FTEL - M2011F10A 250 @ KEH
RAXRBEHEZERENES0.11% ° 82011
F10A258 ARAIBAEEEERY
4 AMKARRRZHBAR - A%E
RKBEXEB RaREBEASERBERL
KEBERNDZATBEENGE - Bt -
EE18119,547,000(BEE5)) B LEREE
201263 A31 HILFEAZBmER

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT
s
BX=

15,025 2,995

(4,751) -

10,274 2,995
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

BHB2013F 3431 HIFFE
12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. X EERF
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit for the year has been arrived RE R A DG -
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 13(a)) SE=ME (AL 13(3) 8,613 5,968
Other staff costs, including retirement HAab B TRCR » B3ERIK
benefits costs BAIA A 17,015 9,136
Total staff costs B8 25,628 15,104
Amortisation of premium and other —BASREZRER
expenses charged on a life insurance H At 2 2 B 8H
policy 93 —
Auditor’s remuneration ZE B & 3,027 1,775
Cost of inventories and properties ERRAFAIZEFE
recognised as expense PENSEES 314,751 113,908
Depreciation of property, M BELRRETE
plant and equipment 1,801 927
and after crediting to other income: WEREMBAGTA
Dividend income from listed investments &8 FH#RE ZIREWA 6,817 4,300
Bank interest income RITHSHA 5,123 2,590
Interest income from deposit and RE—BASREZERBENRZ
prepayments for a life insurance policy FBUA 123 —

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
RN S T )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B2 20133431 HIFFE
13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13.EZ - ERTHARREEZ
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS [ [
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) FRESHE2ER
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for HE2013F3A31BItFEARAE
the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows: EMeFINMT
Non-
executive
Executive director director  Independent non-executive director
#4f7
HES gz BUFHiES
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Lui Koon Wing Jong Tsui Hon
Cheung Yuk Ho Yan, Chiu, Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Sang Kong Chun Total
BRA L% EAR ki HEE hER &35 ag
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000
z:23 FEn iz:23 FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn
Fees Exfig = = = 240 120 120 120 600

Other emoluments o
—salaries and other - EAREMEE

benefits 1,920 5,352 624 - - - - 7,896
— retirement - RirEREE
benefits schemes f#
contributions 12 76 29 = = = = "7
Total directors’ EEl e
emoluments 1,932 5428 653 240 120 120 120 8,613
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e b S EL AT )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
EZ2013F 331 HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments
(continued)

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for

the year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows:

13. 25 aRTHARNEEZ

€2
(a) EHEEMS &R (Z)

HE2012E3831BILEEARAQAE
EMEHIMT ¢

Non-
executive
Executive director director Independent non-executive director
Faf
#Es g% BukES
Kwong
Jimmy Lui Koon  Tse Wing Jong Tsui Hon
Cheung Yuk Ho Yan, Chiu, Koon Chun Tam
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Sang Kong Chun Total
BRA B3k RAM Ak HEE  BRE #EE o
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr  TEr TEr L  TEr gL TEr
Fees B3t - - - 170 120 120 120 530
Other emoluments Eft#e
- salaries and other = HERAM2E
benefits 1,395 3,505 442 - - - - 5,342
— retirement — RyRER
benefits schemes BEES
contributions 12 67 17 - - - - 96
Total directors’ EEdic
emoluments 1,407 3,572 459 170 120 120 120 5,968

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief

Executive.

BERACET/ARRZERTRARLE
NERBZMEBRBEIERSERITRAEMN
R 2 IR o
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e R R MR )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

B 201343 H31 HIFZ

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. € HETHARREEZ
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) €2
(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b) EREEEME2EN

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year included two (2012: two) directors. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2012: three) highest paid individuals,

not being directors, are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e REMER
Retirement benefits schemes RUREHMFHEI 3R

contributions

FR - AEERESERFATRERS
(20124 : MA)EF - HER=%4(2012
FZR)WHEZZERFALTZH
SEINWT

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
2,847 2,338
88 73

2,935 2,411

The emoluments of these employees fall within the

following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000% 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #7T % 1,500,000 /% 7T

ZEREZHMENFTHEE -

Number of employees

BEAR
2013 2012
2 3
1 =
3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other five highest paid individuals,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss in office. In addition, during both

years, no director waived any emoluments.

REER FEEREXNHETES
FPEMERRERHFAL  ER/MARE
MAREE 2 REHERRERT 2
- MI RMFEAR - RBEEFHE
EEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZ2013F3 431 AL FZ
14. TAXATION CHARGE 14, HiIEMA X
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
The charge (credit) comprises: R (FEA) B
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH
Charge for the year REFRX 16,853 2,306
Overprovision for prior years BAEFEBERE (15,345) -
1,508 2,306
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions HAth &% 2 BIE
Charge for the year REERX 329 218
Overprovision for prior years BAEFEBERE (62) -
267 218
1,775 2,524
Deferred taxation (note 32) EEFIE(HZ32)
(Credit) charge for the year REFGTA)HX (52) 410
Tax charge attributable to the Company ~ AR EIREMELR R 2 EG
and its subsidiaries BUARIX 1,723 2,934
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) of EBNEBRIRANEE T8 FEZR B % 5 LA
the estimated assessable profit for the year. 16.5% (20124 : 16.5% )51 & °
During the year ended 31 March 2013, a tax provision made REZ2013F3A3MBILEFE i —EBR
in prior years by a subsidiary, which was deregistered in 2004, 2004 FiEH—HM B AR TR BAEFE
was reversed since the directors of the Company consider the MIEREDER  AALGESERAAEET
payment of such tax provision is not probable. BE T S AT L R T A
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e R R MR )

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
EZ201343 531 HiFF/E

14. TAXATION CHARGE (continued) 14.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1

January 2008 onwards.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made as

the Group had no assessable profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the results per

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

HERX#)

BREPBEAGEEMSTE(CERSH])
REC¥EMERZBRIGH  AEBRFTEH
ZHB AR E2008F1F1HEZRH R A
25% o

AR B 8 FE AL EERT R - &
PRHRPEEEMRER -

b Bl% 2 BB T iR AR R R) A 2 A B R &t

o

o Ol

AEEHERY BRA2HKEREEZY
E NN

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&31)
Profit before taxation B2t A A 647,471 110,610
Tax charge of Hong Kong Profits Tax at &R &EBFISHH = 16.5% (2012
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) F:16.5%) 2 BIHERX 106,833 18,251
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ EHIFI R 2 B2
tax purposes 12,362 38,704
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ EEZHIA 2 FiIBEF £
purposes (97,975) (55,554)
Tax effect of share of results of DA E AR EEHIETE
associates = 2,410
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERAREEB HBYE 2,068 1,348
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BABERERANBEEL
previously not recognised MIERE (6,539) (2,409)
Overprovision for prior years AEFEBERRE (15,407) -
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries X th A% & & 2 KB A BIF X
operating in other jurisdictions ERIRE 381 184
Taxation charge for the year AEERIERL 1,723 2,934
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBRRME @

For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE
15. DIVIDENDS 15. R E
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET &
Dividends recognised as distribution REREEIRFE2ZRE
during the year
Final dividend paid for financial year HZE2012F3 A31 HEMBEE
ended 31 March 2012 of HK$0.04 ZENRERE AEH0.04 /87T
(2012: HK$0.12) per share (20124 : 0.12787L) 3,177 9,530
Interim dividend paid for financial year HE2012F3 A31 BILBEFE
ended 31 March 2012 of HK$0.10 per ZENFHREAER0.107ET
share - 7,942
3,177 17,472
Dividend proposed REE=
Proposed final dividend for financial year &% 201343 A31 H FH B FEE
ended 31 March 2013 of HK$0.40 per BEZARRERER0.408 T
share (2012: financial year ended 31 (2012% : B1Z 201243 A31H
March 2012 of HK$0.04 per share) LR F R &R 0.0477T) 31,768 3,177

The final dividend of HK$0.40 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$0.04 per share) has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

BB E2013F3A3MBLEEEZER
0.408 T2 AR B (20125 - Bk 0.045
TEBRANREESEEVANEERRESF
AE LBEARBRE 2B o
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For The Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZE 20133 /31 A FE
16. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. SREERZF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to RRBREREMN 2 ERERBF HREAT
owners of the Company is based on the following data: AHREE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&51)
Earnings for the purpose of basic HERERZFNE 2 BF
earnings per share (profit for the year (ARRIRRENLZ
attributable to owners of the Company) REZ = H) 647,022 101,181
2013 2012
Number of shares RAEE
Number of shares in issue during the HAEERERRNME 2
year, for the purpose of calculating REARNEBITIRNOEE
basic earnings per share 79,420,403 79,420,403
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there is no BRAR AR EFEANLERKITEZE
potential ordinary shares of the Company outstanding during ELRRRG - MA25SREERT -
both years.

KEFBREBEARAE 2012/13 44t

137




138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For The Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

In January 2011, each of the Company and Easyknit
Enterprises entered into an employment contract with
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, to act as general manager of each
of the Company and Easyknit Enterprises for a salary
of HK$50,000 per month. The employment agreements
commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be terminated
by either party at any time by three months’ notice. The
remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager
of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2013 was
HK$1,329,000 (2012: HK$939,000) and was included in
the “compensation of key management personnel” in (b)
below. Mr. Koon Wing Yee is the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu who is a director of the Company and is also one of
the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74% (2012:
36.74%) equity interest of the Company at 31 March 2013.
She also holds 21.95% (2012: 21.95%) equity interest of
the Company through an entity wholly-owned by her.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits ySR-lil = e el
Salaries and other benefits e A2
Contribution to retirement benefit ROREHFHEI 3R

schemes

(@)

(b)

17.BEATR S BEXS

R2011F1A - ARRIEXKEEED
AEEKERLETLEARE  UAH
50,000 B TEABEAAEE R KBEE
2B - ZERABZER2011F2A
21BFE  BREERER—FHT
“ERBAmMELL - BEE2013F3 A
BMNALFARKREEERATEE
s 7 B € 51,329,000 T (2012
F:939,0008TT) R EBE B KE L
£H2011F2R21BRAARNEEZ
BEBEAEENTO)EZ[ZEER
AEBZEMIN - BEXREEREEL
TE2lRE  BEERZTAARRIES
R ABR2013F3 A1 B EALNH
36.74% (20124F : 36.74% ) B 2 &
HF—EZREETEZRA - BHER—M
HE2BMA 2 BEEFAARRT21.95%
(20124 : 21.95% ) #Ezs -

TEEEABZHM

EEXREMTBEEERBRFAZHME
LN

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
11,626 8,563
244 213
11,870 8,776

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and the
executive directors, respectively, having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

EERTFETBABZME D R B EH M
ZEENHMTEERRENALZRE
EMZBEmETE -
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

EE20134F 3431 HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. )% - MERX®E

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
properties equipment vehicles in progress Total
B 2B
RamE R RE EREIR fag
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000
AT FAT TAT T AT
COST A
At 1 April 2011 R2011E4 518 3,319 2,608 - - 5,927
Exchange realignment iR - 1 4 111 116
Additions AE - 69 806 - 875
Acquisition of WEENB A R (A1#33)

subsidiaries (note 33) - 234 265 10,384 10,883
Transferred from HRERELEERNE

properties held for (Hizt23)

development for sale

(note 23) 12,774 - - - 12,774
Transferred from SRERENE

investment properties (H#19)

(note 19) 36,500 - - - 36,500
At 31 March 2012 R2012E3A31H 52,593 2,912 1,075 10,495 67,075
Exchange realignment R AR - 1 2 51 54
Additions NE - 295 405 8,853 9,553
Transferred to investment E&EZH A%

properties (note 19) (H#19) (3,031) - - (19,399) (22,430)
At 31 March 2013 1201343 A 31 H 49,562 3,208 1,482 - 54,252
ACCUMULATED ZiTE

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2011 R2011E4 818 1,172 2,593 - - 3,765
Exchange realignment R AR - 1 3 - 4
Provided for the year TEERE 613 79 235 = 927
At 31 March 2012 R2012E3A31H 1,785 2,673 238 - 4,696
Exchange realignment BERAZ - 1 2 - 3
Provided for the year TEERE 1,298 122 381 = 1,801
Eliminated upon transfer ~ B E K ENEEMH

to investment (H#19)

properties (note 19) (50) - - - (50)
At 31 March 2013 1201343 A 31 H 3,033 2,796 621 - 6,450
CARRYING VALUES EnE
At 31 March 2013 12013463 A 31 H 46,529 412 861 - 47,802
At 31 March 2012 R2012E3A31H 50,808 239 837 10,495 62,379
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

BHB2013F 3431 HIFFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. 1% - RERR&HE#)
(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment other than THEEYE BERXEGREZTEZN
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis BB GEREAT 2 ol E BEHRTEE

according to the following useful lives:

Leasehold properties Over the duration of the leases or ERSk/ES RO i
fifty years, whichever is the shorter NEEETE
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years B - EER 3E10F
equipment B4
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years P2} 5104
The carrying value of leasehold properties shown above A FRAMEEEESR -
comprises:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Properties situated in Hong Kong under: I &EB 2 )% :

Long lease REHA 9,450 12,646
Medium-term lease FRERFA LY 37,079 38,162

46,529 50,808
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group transferred EZE2012F 331 HIEFE AR
certain properties from properties held for development for sale AR AEERAMEEEE£EEERNEE @ K
of HK$12,774,000 to property, plant and equipment since there EEAEELERRME12,774,000/5 T
was a change of use of the property for owner-occupation rather BETMESYE - BENRHZE

than for sale in the ordinary course of business.
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZ201343 531 HiFF/E

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, investment properties
with fair value of HK$36,500,000 being leased to EE Group were
transferred from investment properties to property, plant and
equipment upon Easyknit Enterprises becoming a subsidiary of
the Company. Also, during the year ended 31 March 2012, the
Group transferred certain properties from properties held for
development for sale of HK$14,540,000 to investment properties
upon the change in use evidenced by commencement of
operating lease of respective properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the directors of the
Company decided to transfer certain leasehold properties to
completed investment properties for future leasing purpose.
Hence the directors of the Company assessed the fair value
of these leasehold properties which are determined based
on valuation performed by independent qualified professional
property valuer carried out at the date of transfer, by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices of similar properties. As
a result, leasehold properties with a fair value of HK$14,500,000
were transferred to completed investment properties upon
change in use of the properties, evidenced by end of owner-
occupation as the Group entered into an operating lease with
an outsider, resulting in an increase in the property revaluation
reserve of HK$11,519,000.

In March 2013, the directors of the Company decided to
transfer construction in progress to investment properties under
development as the Group was in the process of negotiating
with potential tenants for future leasing of the related properties.
Prior to the transfer, the directors of the Company assessed the
fair value of the construction in progress which is determined
based on valuation performed by independent qualified
professional property valuer carried out at the date of transfer
to investment properties under development by reference to net
rental income allowing for reversionary income potential using
the applicable market yields for the respective locations and
types of properties. As a result, construction in progress with
a fair value of HK$20,446,000 was transferred to investment
properties under development upon change in use of the
properties, resulting in an increase in the property revaluation
reserve of HK$1,047,000.

18. W% - BEEZRE®

B E2012F3A3MBILLFRN EXEE
ERAAAR—HNBARE  R¥EA
36,500,000 BT AT KBREXEEZRE
MERREMEBRENE - BEREE-
R BZ2012F3 A31 HIEFE - E18H
MEZCEROARBEREARE A%
BlERFELEERYEEE 14,540,000 7T
ZETHEZRENE -

REZ2013F3AMBILEE  ARAE
ERAEEBRETHANEZE THIRENME
fEBBRBREEBS - FIARNARIERF A
EROMEZATE WHRBEBYEERK
ERYFAEMTR2EREVMERRER
LGB RENERARET 2 AEMETE -
At RETERERBEVEREZAS
K- AAEEEE-BIRATFTULZEH
4 R¥{E14,500,0008 T2 AW EE
BREBTRERENEER R EHFEEE M
11,519,000 BT °

R2013E3 7 AR ASE R 2H
F#HE  AAREEATEREEIRER
EBRRENE kAR EREEDE - &
B ARRESTEUMEEIRZAT
B LWHRBEBIAEREENERSIT
S2EFRABATSRE 2 A ERMESE
MREERREERAZRSBAFER
ERERRPREMEABRETZMEEN
BT Al RUEREZREE ATE
20,446,000 8 T2 EE T RE B EHREPK
Y% BRY XSG EHE 1,047,000
BT

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REMBRRME @

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE

At 1 April 2011

Exchange realignment

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 33)

Transferred from properties held

for development for sale
(note 23)

Transferred to property, plant and

equipment (note 18)

Increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss

At 31 March 2012
Exchange realignment
Additions

Transferred from property, plant

and equipment (note 18)

Reclassification

Increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss

At 31 March 2013

AF¥E

R2011F4 818
R

INE
WEEH B AR (A2 33)

EERABELERRENE
(Bt:t23)

HEENE  BERRE
(Ftit18)
PBHER 2 A FEE

R201243 A31H

RS

INE

BWRANE  BERRE
(Kizt18)

BHAE

RIBaER 2 R T AL

M201343 A31H

19. REY=%

Investment

Completed properties

investment under

properties development
B BEP Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
1,165,675 — 1,165,675
1,875 — 1,875
164,031 — 164,031
317,703 — 317,703
14,540 — 14,540
(36,500) — (36,500)
5,302 — 5,302
1,632,626 — 1,632,626
3,252 — 3,252
279,626 — 279,626
14,500 20,446 34,946
(29,740) 29,740 —
487,051 — 487,051
2,387,315 50,186 2,437,501
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZ201343 531 HiFF/E

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 19. REYM =2

During the year, the Group submitted a revised development
plan to the Zhili Town Government. Under the revised
development plan, certain bare land of the completed investment
properties was being rezoned for the purpose to construct
properties for leasing in future (“Future Development Land”).
Hence the directors of the Company decided to reclassify the
respective portion of bare land amounting to HK$29,740,000
(RMB24,000,000) from completed investment properties to
investment properties under development. The valuation of
the Future Development Land in the PRC was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
land in similar location.

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment properties
and investment properties under development in the PRC at
31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 was arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out as at these dates by the following
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers
not connected with the Group. The valuation of the completed
investment properties and investment properties under
development (other than Future Development Land) in the PRC
was arrived at by reference to net rental income allowing for
reversionary income potential using the applicable market yields

for the respective locations and types of properties.

The valuations of completed investment properties in Hong Kong
and Singapore were arrived at by reference to market evidence
of recent transaction prices for similar properties and by
reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential using the applicable market yields for the respective

locations and types of properties.

FEN - AEBERRBIEENE THEER
fF e REBEZETERTE EERRENME
ZETEMEETRENEEMEEAAR
ZHB(AEERELH) - Al ARRE
ERERETRIEEMEFR Z BT D
29,740,000 7T ( A K # 24,000,000 7T ) E 57
DEERERRENE - RPBEZBRERE
T EED2ERE T RRELE 2T
BRRBIRERE

A& ERK201343 A31H 201243 A 31
BRREE A A TRIRE Y R E
BHEENEATEDRATERNEELE
BEBUSEREENMEREMTRZS
BHETRECEEETE - ASERPEZ
ETRRENERERTREMZE(ARERE
MERIN ZEEN2ERBERTSREZ
BEERNFERLEERRRETHA 2
He M AFE -

REBRM B TR RENEZBEL
SERBYEZMEOPRRERZEZRA
ERMS WS 2 R EL RN RBE 2R
B2 ERRASH SR FE -

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

BHB2013F 3431 HIFFE
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REWFE @)
Name of valuer Location of investment properties
EEMTER REMEZ M
At 31 March 2013 At 31 March 2012
M201353A31H M201263A31H
Knight Frank Petty Limited PRC Hong Kong and PRC
R RIFHE{TER R A ] BB R E
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong
BURHT B ERT B AR A A A B8
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore
A% Ik
All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under AEEMEREERANETHRIAS 2 L1
operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair BAERTIARFEERGTERIEREY
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment T8 o
properties.
The carrying value of investment properties shown above A ERBYEZREESRE
comprises:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T

Property interests situated in Hong Kong NBEB YRR

under:
Long lease REAL 919,860 518,100
Medium-term lease HHIFE A 1,158,550 779,780
2,078,410 1,297,880
Property interests situated in the PRC (VRAIEAY ES S
under:
Medium-term lease REFFA LY 184,015 164,157
Freehold properties situated in Singapore IR 2 R Y% 175,076 170,589
2,437,501 1,632,626
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B2 20133431 HIFFE
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. At HERE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at REB LMz BAES
market value BmE 35,965 35,530
21. LOANS RECEIVABLE o1, FE 5
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Unsecured amount EERSHE
— guaranteed by outside parties and — HE=EERIIREEE X
bearing interest at a fixed rate of 5% 5% (20124 : EEBXK :
(2012: a fixed rate ranging from 5% to B5% E7%) 2FFRHE
7%) per annum 20,100 17,100
— bearing interest at a fixed rate ranging — BEEEE5% ZE7% (2012
from 5% to 7% (2012: ranging from 5% FHR5%E7%)2FEFR
to 7%) per annum FTE 53,687 36,610
Amount secured by a property and bearing A E /R RIRETE B X
interest at a fixed rate of 4.5% (2012: 4.5% (20124 : 4.5%)
4.5%) per annum 2 EMEAE 5,000 5,000
Amount secured by properties and bearing ¥ EEEIR LIRS EER
interest at prime rate MEHE 9,587 736
88,374 59,446
Less: Amount due from borrowers B BRRREEEL —FA
repayable within one year ZEEE 2 EETRA
shown under current assets -l (56,447) (53,721)
Amount due from borrowers repayable after FRAIERBEE 2 —F1&
one year shown under non-current assets ~ ZF|HIEE Y EUERALE 31,927 5,725
KEBIBEEMARA T 2012/13 48
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

21.

22.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable and considers loans receivable amounting to
HK$79,374,000 (2012: HK$59,446,000) that are neither past due
nor impaired to be of good credit quality based on historical
settlement records. As at 31 March 2013, loans receivable
under current assets with carrying amount of HK$9,000,000
(2012: nil) are past due for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as there has not been a significant change in
the credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable

based on historical experience.

All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional currency

of the relevant group entity, at the end of the reporting period.

DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR A
LIFE INSURANCE POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company entered
into a life insurance policy with an insurance company to insure
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, a director of the Company. Under
the policy, the Company is the beneficiary and policy holder
and the total insured sum is US$10,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$83,808,000). The Company is required to pay an upfront
deposit of US$1,283,000 (equivalent to HK$9,956,000) including
a premium charge at inception of the policy amounting to
US$76,980 (equivalent to HK$597,000). The Company can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back based
on the cash value of the policy at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the upfront payment of US$1,283,000
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge (“Cash Value”). In
addition, if withdrawal is made between the first to eighteenth
policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender charge.
The insurance company will pay the Company an interest of
4.0% per annum on the outstanding Cash Value of the policy
for the first year. Commencing on the second year, the interest
will become 2% per annum plus a premium determined by the

insurance company.

21.

22,

BRER#)

CEERTERRRERZEEEZRRA
8B R EA KR B 2 e & 51 79,374,000 % 7T
(20124 : 59,446,000 8 70 ) B BB}
BERITMEESE X - R2013F3A310 ' ©
MENE E 2 e E 5 AR (59,000,000 7 7T
(20124 : M)EBHEREEWRZEHAE
BEELBREREHBGELAEYREANE
RARIBIE £ SR Rt S AT AU o

FARKERRBEHROARBEEER
ZWEEEATIE -

—BABREZRERAMNXK

REZE2013F3 A31 HIEFE - NARE—
BRB ARG —HASREURRAAT
ESEAMELT - REZRE - AARAT
mARREREAKERREER 10,800,000
% J(48 % 183,808,000/ L ) © A A 7
8 % ff 78 % #& £1,283,0003% jt(H & R
9,956,000 7T) * BERFZIRERAEL M
2R % 76,980 % 7T (8% 7 597,000 7T )
AR BRI R IR AR L Z R B RIBRR R
RZREZREEERERSE - ILHREHE
501,283,000 3 7T & A Bk R 2 Rt FL8 R
MERFRERREEARAZ(HELEE]
MERE - I WRREE—FEETNF
BR - BERESREARRAY - RRE
F—F RBARABREMNBIESEBIR
FRBA%ZHFETFARA - HEZFH -
FERER2% MBRBAREEHE °
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22,

23.

DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR A
LIFE INSURANCE POLICY (continued)

As at 31 March 2013, the deposit and prepayments for a life
insurance policy amounting to HK$9,986,000, with HK$277,000
being included in trade and other receivables (see note 25), were
pledged to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to

the Group.

The deposit and prepayments for a life insurance policy are
denominated in USD, a currency other than the functional

currency of the Company.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

Movements of properties held for development for sale are as

22, —EARBREZEERANK

(%&)

R2013F3A31H ' —BASREZESR
TE{43%4 9,986,000 8 7T © EH 277,000/ 7T
BREEESRAMERZEN(RME25)
BERATRAIEAERTAEE —RRTHE
kv

—BABREZRE RANFIARAFEE
BN BB ERTTIIE

23. FFHERRYE

RIEHERRMEZEHNT :

follows:

HK$°000

FET

At 1 April 2011 R2011F4 A1H 538,830

Additions NE 63,230

Transferred to properties held for sale EREFENEME (230,490)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment BEEYE - BERSENZ18)

(note 18) (12,774)
Transferred to investment properties (note 19) BREREMEMNZF19) (14,540)
At 31 March 2012 20123 A31H 344,256
Additions (Note) NE (H32) 365,629
Borrowing costs capitalised BARLIEEKA 4,751
At 31 March 2013 M2013F3 A31H 714,636

KBRS M A PR AW 2012/13 5
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FOR SALE (continued)

Note: The amount included an addition of HK$61,750,000 arising from
an acquisition of a subsidiary which had property interests. This
transaction is for the purpose of acquiring properties held for
development for sale in the ordinary course of business, and has
been accounted for as a purchase of assets rather than business
combination. On the date of acquisition, assets included deposits
paid for acquisition of properties accounting to HK$12,850,000,
and the amount due to a former Shareholder amounting to
HK$12,850,000. Any additional consideration paid was treated as
part of the purchase cost of the properties. Further details of this
transaction are set out in a circular of the Company dated 19 July
2012.

At 31 March 2013, the properties held for development for
sale of HK$714,636,000 (2012: HK$344,256,000) included both
properties held for development and under development, and
were included in the Group’s current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as it is expected that the
properties will be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle

for properties development.

At 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the Group performed
impairment assessment on its properties held for development
to assess their recoverable amounts with reference to valuations
made by independent qualified professional property valuers
not connected to the Group. The valuations were arrived at
by using the residual valuation method. As the recoverable
amounts of the properties held for development are higher than
their carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no impairment

on these properties is considered necessary.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
EZ20134%3 31 HIFFEE

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 23. H{EHEZRREMX &)

fri: teEeeRaRBE-—RRENERER
WiE 2 Az —IBAE 61,750,000 57T © It
RHGVRBEAFELEERNEZ — KK
EEY RUBABEMTREREHE
ALK -RKERH AEBEBAYE
2 B4 12,850,000 7% 7T K & 4 A X &R
2% %12,850,000 % 7 o B 2 5EI
REERBAMEZ DS RARE - IR
— SR BEHRANDAI201257 A

198 2@ -

R2013F3A31H AREAMEBNAE
EMEBR EEEEBHNES 2R
FERRERTNEIHRELERRYE
714,636,00078 7T (20124 : 344,256,000
TRGEHBRARINERAEB 2 REE
Eo

R20134F3A31H k201263 A31H + &
SEERBERRMELEITRETE 22
BASBEERE/ BUSEREEAEMT
ZEERTEETKEI S - ZEMEDR
BRAGBEESGE - ARFEREDE 2
hEeERRERRERRZERE  AQ
AEERAZEYERTERME -
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EZE 20133 /31 A FE
24. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 24 BFIEEERE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at REB LT 2RAES -
market value A 287,564 149,009
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. ES5 R HMEWRFIE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B S EIE 15,347 16,575
Deposits paid to suppliers to be realised M1ERER 2 EFT
within 1 year HERRS 6,726 5,632
Deposit and prepayments for a life —EASREZEER
insurance policy (see note 22) BNR(ZHZ22) 277 -
Prepayments ENE 3,439 2,213
Other receivables Hfth U GRIR 2,480 6,611
28,269 31,031
The Group allows credit period of up to 20 days to its lessees KREBAHFEATMAZEESSZSE208 K
and up to 90 days to its other customers. The aged analysis of HMEFEIOH - BiEETKREAHE 2
trade receivables, based on invoice date which approximates BKEQH BHEWRZBERRESHRZERR
revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period is as DWW :
follows:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
0 — 60 days 0—60H 15,219 16,554
61 — 90 days 61 — 90 H 128 21
15,347 16,575
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REMBRRME @

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
BZ20134%3 431 HIFFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that

are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance at 31
March 2013 were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$923,000 (2012: HK$705,000) which were past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for allowance. The Group did not hold any collateral over these

balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days EiBH1Z=60H
Overdue by 61 to 90 days EiBH61£90H

25. E5 R EMEWTIE 2)

ERERRERE I NAMRUFRZEE
EXRARRABHRAEZES NAME
BRBERERFEEER -

R2013F3H31B A5 B 28 FEKK
He - BIEREES $£923,000% (2012
% : 705,000 7T) REBHERZ BT IRE
o REBEWR AR AT EEER

ERSEKREY BB EKIAZ BRI
mT :

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
796 684

128 21

924 705

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due are generally recoverable and as a
result, no allowance was made for trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

usD ET
RMB AR

BEAKBZELER CRHZEZRK
SR — R A AN E - BB 5 R R IE
RIS ARG REE -

ARBENERSBERNEEE NI ER
SEZES REAMBYGIRMT -

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
13,622 14,391
- 157
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B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

26.

27.

BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 March 2013, the bills receivables are aged within 60 days

and are denominated in USD.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
at prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 4.6%
(2012: 0.001% to 3.1%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group placed a time deposit,
amounting to RMB66,880,000 (equivalent to HK$82,875,000),
with a financial institution in the PRC with original maturity of
three months (2012: nil). The time deposit contains embedded
derivative, the interest rate of which is determined with
reference to the exchange rate of USD against HKD and ranges
from 2.86% to 4.0% per annum. The embedded derivative is
considered closely related to the host contract as it would not
double the Group’s initial return on the host contract when
comparing to the host contract without embedded derivative.
Therefore it has not been accounted for separately in the
consolidated financial statements and is included in “bank

balances and cash” as at 31 March 2013.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

HKD AT
RMB AR
usD %
Euro BT

26.

27.

ERRE

R2013F3A31 R EWRERZ Kk 560
AR NIAETTIINE

RWITH ﬁ?&iﬁ%

ZeBEBRASEEE RS URERITT
BEFNEH0.001EZE4.6E (20124 : 0.001
EZ3.1E)z3{EAs 2 BIH 2 S HRTE

=+
e

R2013F3A31H KREEHE —fF &P
& 7B A A K % 66,880,000 7C(% &

82,875,000 7t ) 2 = 1@ A IJB‘HZEHHT
(2012F : &) EHERE XN
E%ZEEE%%%%R)’%%ZET@%

N EFEH286%E40% LERERNE
TTAEBEZERBEL ARTEMELRE
ERERBENZMBRE®R NEITEEER
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁlzﬁ%é@ﬁiﬁ%@ﬁwo & it

REEMBREABIZERERER
2013¢3H31HZT@Eﬁ,ﬂuﬁ%&iﬁ/ﬁJmo

AEBENFBRERERNEER NI ZE
SIEZRITHARRBASIOT

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAT
146 87

13 14
65,013 40,968
- 10,199
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZ2013F3 431 AL FZ
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. E 5 R H BT RIE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade payables O ANE S 12,963 16,164
Rental deposits received and rental Blieke kEKES
received in advance 21,359 11,726
Deposits received from sale of HEFEEN 2 BWRE
residential units 5,230 7,185
Other taxes payable Hfth fE R IR 4,474 11,070
Accruals and other payables TE R % E At B 50 TE 12,842 12,623
56,868 58,768
The aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at BEZRZAH  BHEMNZERAREH R
the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREDITAE ¢
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
0 — 60 days 0—60H 6,353 12,219
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 1,270 730
Over 90 days H#iB90 H 5,340 3,215
12,963 16,164
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in AREBUNEBEEEL R EE Iz B
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant HEZE S REMBERZIBNT
group entities are set out below:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
usb e 93 85
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B2 20133431 HIFFE
29. BILLS PAYABLE 29. EHEH
At 31 March 2012, the bills payable are aged within 30 days. All R201263A31H  BRNERZEKER A30
of the Group’s bills payable were denominated in the functional HA - AEBEZFAERNEEHYNEEEE
currencies of the relevant group entities. BRI EEEIE -
30. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 30. BIEFRITEE
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount repayable as follows JEERZBREENT
(based on the scheduled repayment dates ~ (REBEEZHE 2
set out in the loan agreements): EEEERH)
— within one year - —FR 25,602 17,308
— between one to two years — —EMF 26,071 17,524
— between two to five years = ZZE 4 300,163 54,629
— more than five years — BRRAF 403,731 289,318
755,567 378,779
Comprising: BE:
Amount due within one year shown under ~ BERRAHAEBZ —ER
current liabilities A 25,602 17,308
Amount that are not repayable within NEBMEMR—FARERE
one year from the end of the reporting BEINERCEHE
period but containing a repayment on (ETRRERE)
demand clause (shown under current
liabilities) 5,276 -
30,878 17,308
Amount due after one year shown under BTRRERBEEL —F&
non-current liabilities S 724,689 361,471
755,567 378,779
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBHRRME @
For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
HZ2013F3 31 HIFFE

30. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (continueq)

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
carried interest at HIBOR plus 1% to HIBOR plus 3.25%, with
effective interest ranging from 1.2% to 3.5% (2012: 1.2%
to 1.4%) per annum. The loans are secured by investment
properties, properties held for development for sale and deposit
and prepayments for a life insurance policy of the Group (see
note 34). The proceeds were used to finance acquisition of

investment properties and development of properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, at the end of the

reporting period.

30. FEARTER @)

R2013F3A31H  "NEBZ HIKFET
EEDUEBRITRAERSMI% ZRERF
BMN3.25%:E  BMENETIH12%E
3.5% (2012F : 1.2% £1.4%) - ZE B X
DUREB 2R EYE  BELEERME
R—BASREZ R RENKIEAER(R
BisE34) - IS RIERIEBAREMERE
BYMEZHE -

RBERR - MAERTEEHUEREEE
BZNMEERETINE -

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. kA&
2013 & 2012
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: ETE -

10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ 10,000,000,000 f%E{& 0.1 & T 2 & @Mk 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid: EZFTREE :
79,420,403 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 79,420,403 IR EE 0.1 /B T2 L EA% 7,942

There were no changes in the Company’s authorised, issued

and fully paid share capital in both years.

AARZERE  BBARARBAEMEE
BUEED -
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

Et 2201343 A31 HIFFEZ

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. EERIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAFEERBAFEZERREERLERA
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior BEEBE)REEFMT
years:
Accelerated
tax  Revaluation Tax
depreciation of properties losses Total
MERERE EfiYE BEFR @5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2011 (originally stated) 7201144 F1H
(REZ51) 69 137,922 (11,788) 126,203
Adjustments upon adoption of  R#ABESHTAIZ 125

amendments to HKAS 12 (BETR) z A% - (137,922) 11,719 (126,203)
At 1 April 2011 (restated) R201154 818 (E5) 69 - (69) -
Exchange realignment BT B - 161 - 161
Acquisition of subsidiaries Weks B ARl (A7i233)

(note 33) - 12,418 - 12,418
Charge (credit) to profit or loss ~ REZMK(GEA) 862 309 (761) 410
At 31 March 2012 (restated) 1201243 A31 B (E3) 931 12,888 (830) 12,989
Exchange realignment BT B - 51 - 51
Charge (credit) to profit or loss ~ PEZME(GEA) 920 (68) (74) (52)
At 31 March 2013 R20134%3A31H 1,021 12,871 (904) 12,988
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement REVGEHBRAEMS @ FlEEFRIE

of financial position, the above deferred tax liabilities and assets

have been offset.

BERBEECIFEH -
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For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financing reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets BERIBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXEBHIBEE

32.

ERERIE ()

MM BREMS - BERBERZOTOT

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
(Restated)

(E51)

12,988 12,989
12,988 12,989

At 31 March 2013, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$86,714,000 (2012: HK$113,362,000, as restated) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$5,481,000 (2012: HK$5,031,000,
as restated) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
HK$81,233,000 (2012: HK$108,331,000, as restated) due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. At 31 March 2013,
all of the unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

R201353A31H A5 B A XY H
B B B 1B 586,714,000/ JL(20124F :
113,362,000/ 7C * B &5 ) - A A R K 84
A ROE M o H R Y IH B $85,481,000% 7T
(20124 : 5,031,000 ¢ * EEJI) B R
REERBEE -BRKREBT AR EF
WA i AR B SR 88 81,233,000 T
(20124 : 108,331,000/ = B &%) 2
HIEBERELERIEEE - N201353 A 31
B FERERBIEEEEERBESE -
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B ZE20134F 3 A31 i F/E

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. KWEEHIE 2 =

On 12 September 2011, Goodco Development Limited
(“Goodco”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement (the “Conditional Share Purchase Agreement”)
with an independent third party for acquiring 61,775,205 shares
in the share capital of Easyknit Enterprises (“EE Shares”) when
Easyknit Enterprises was an associate of the Group for an
aggregate consideration of HK$18,533,000, or HK$0.30 per EE
Share. The 61,775,205 EE Shares represented approximately
11.22% of the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises
as at the date of the Conditional Share Purchase Agreement.
Immediately following the completion of the Conditional Share
Purchase Agreement on 19 October 2011, the Group owned in
aggregate 246,942,192 EE Shares, representing approximately
44.84% of the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers,
the Group was required to make a mandatory conditional offer
to acquire all the issued EE Shares not already owned or agreed
to be owned by the Group (the “Offer”). The offer price for the
Offer is HK$0.30 per offer share. On 25 October 2011, the Offer
was declared unconditional and the Group had in aggregate
approximately 50.11% interests in Easyknit Enterprises and has

obtained control over the EE Group.

The Offer was closed on 11 November 2011. Immediately
after the close of the Offer, the Group owned in aggregate
445,450,671 EE Shares, representing approximately 80.89% of
the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises. The remaining
19.11% of the issued share capital of Easyknit Enterprises
were held by the public. Easyknit Enterprises could not fulfill
the minimum public float requirement under the Listing Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
Accordingly on 21 December 2011, Goodco entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which
Goodco agreed to place, through the placing agent, 47,000,000
EE Shares to independent investors at a price of HK$0.27
per placing share (the “Placing”). Upon completion of the
Placing on 4 January 2012, the shareholding of the Company
in Easyknit Enterprises reduced from approximately 80.89% to

approximately 72.36%.

R2011E9A12H  ARE—M2EWEB
ANAERERERAT(ERE—2B
F=FiIumE(BEHREROEE HBZE]) U
WREAEE —FHBE DR KEEERATZ
61,775,205 IR iR ([ kR EHE R 1) - AR
{£7518,533,000 8T ' HBRKKREERD
0.387 - NBEIKERNEERZILAS
61,775,205 Rk ZEERMARKBREED
BITIRAR 2 11.22% - ZEBGEGHROES
HEN2011F10A19B =R AEFA
B 246,942,192 Rk B E E R - KFKK
EEXDBTRAL44.84% °

BERAARKBREHTH  AEENKE
RUERHERGEED  UEEBEMBEAEEY
ABEELIREREBZEBRITKREERD
TEH)) - BRELBROHZELNERIE
T R2011E10A258 BN EHhAEKR
HRAEEAHEBENS011% I KEEE
BaRERGEKRBEEER 2E o

ZEHER20MMFETANMBELE BEREE
WE LR - NEEE HE A 445,450,671 %
KEBEERD  KEKBEESBEITRAL
80.89% ° F#r19.11% 2 kEB XD BT
AAARKAE  KRBEEREREABRAZ
FHEETMRAZEERAREREZENK - &
it 2011 E12 A21H  ExERERRE
FVRERE  ERAEERARENRERE
47,000,000 Rk &R B XK TELIRESE
SREERNERA027TBT(RE]) - B
20121 A4 BB ETKE  RRFAIRKE
EE R EMY80.89% HE#472.36% °
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33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. H&Eﬁﬁ‘f%’&ﬂ(@%}

The above acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted for
using the acquisition method. The Group obtained control over
Easyknit Enterprises on 25 October 2011, on which date the
amount of gain from bargain purchase is HK$211,089,000 (as
restated). The Group further increased its equity interests in
Easyknit Enterprises subsequent to 25 October 2011 to 72.36%
which did not result in the Group losing control over Easyknit
Enterprises and hence was accounted for as equity transactions.
The difference of HK$93,169,000 (as restated) between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the net amount of consideration paid, amounting
to HK$38,307,000, is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company. The EE Group was mainly engaged
in garment sourcing and exporting, property investment and

investment in securities.

The net assets recognised at 25 October 2011, the date of

acquisition, are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment M - BB RHRE
Investment properties REME
Investments held for trading RIEEERE

Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERTIE
Bills receivable L ES

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRR
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERAFIA
Tax payable FEfIHIE

Deferred taxation, as restated RIERIE - B &7

AEMTE R R 2 W8T A BE A ARR © B
2011 F10A25H  AEERGEKREFE L
2l - B B 2 3 W A 8 211,089,000
BL(BEEY ). B2011F10725H 1% °
AEBE-—SHEMRKBREEIRRZE
72.36% ' HRNVEEEBAKEREKEEE
2R AMAEERZAR - EREZFE
s ke AR E QT (EF5E 38,307,000
ALz Z893,169,000 8 L(EEY) - ER
BEEEERAREIREAARRRE - k&
EXSBTENRERERBONK  WER
BRBFREEK -

NUEBHI2011 10 B25 AR R Z B E
BEE

2012
HK$000
FET
(Restated)
(E31)

10,883
317,703

74,609

61,977

647

184,821

(37,426)
(14,325)
(12,418)

586,471
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33. ACQU'S'T'ON OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of

the receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade and

33. WEEH B A R (&)

ARRIZEZRR  WEERIGVR(EERE
EHNEAMBYFARELRER) 2 A FERE

other receivables and bills receivable) approximate to the gross HBENSEREL - ThARKE B HTE K

contractual amounts, the best estimate at acquisition date of the B2 RYRIE 2 & HIR & 8 2 B AEME

contractual cash flows of the receivables which are expected to

be collected.

Bargain purchase gain arising on acquisition:

o 5 U 2 T AR 26

2012
HK$°000
FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Consideration transferred: REEE
— Fair value of previously held interests of — RAIBAKEEE44.84% X2 NFE
44.84% in Easyknit Enterprises 74,083
— Consideration paid in respect of obtaining — BRGBEHZERNRE
control (from 44.84% to 50.11%) (F144.84% £50.11%) 8,709
82,792
Plus: Non-controlling interests (49.89%) 0 FEFRRGHERS (49.89% ) DB EEZFE
measured at proportionate share of the Z AT ERLASGEE - EE7
fair value of net assets acquired, as
restated 292,590
Less: Net assets acquired - BWBEETE (586,471)
Gain from a bargain purchase (credited to RE— BRI W= (B ARR) -
profit or loss), as restated 2&7 (211,089)
Net cash inflow on acquisition: Wi 2 R e mAFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BlEzReREREE 184,821
Less: Cash consideration paid B ENBEERE (8,709)
176,112

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t
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33.

34.

ACQU'S'T'ON OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Included in the revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March
2012 were HK$79,792,000 and HK$19,129,000 (as restated)
respectively attributable to the EE Group.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2011, total group
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 would
have been HK$410,708,000 and HK$53,785,000 (as restated)
respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April

2011, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted

to the Group:

Investment properties REME
Properties held for development for sale RIELEERNZF
Deposit and prepayments for a life

insurance policy

33.

34.

Uk B B B 1 B (4

BENREE201263 31 BILFE & %%
Ko A2 BIA 79,792,000 7 7T % 19,129,000
BILT(EEI)BRKEEEEE -

BMEWRBER2011F4A1B =K A5E
REE 2 BE 28R mM7 5 &410,708,000
% 53,785,000/ T (EEFI) - BEEREE
AR U TRERMKEN201154A
1HERAESc ASEEEBRES 5
R FRIEEI R R EEEL TR

EERH
WREER ARBERFRTEARLRT

==
AEEEREEZEENT

—BEABREZEEREMNRK

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
1,452,000 677,500
477,769 —
9,986 —
1,939,755 677,500
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. REHALH
The Group as lessee rEBEREEA
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments recognised in FARERER 2 ZEBLTH
profit or loss during the year 1,860 1,640

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

RBERR  ARBEREAAIHHELERL
ZARRZERONFREHRNT

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 1,872 547
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERAFN(REEEME) 300 70
2,172 617

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and directors’ quarters.

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to two years.

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for

contingent rental payments.

RERNNFEARBREETHRAZERE
SEMZEMNES - BOGERE—ZEMEF

RENKEF L 2BH  BONREREE
R BT A SR
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35.

(continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned FARRZMERSKA
during the year

Less: Outgoings B i

Net rental income e A FHE

KEHNTH 2

AEEERBHEEA
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
51,246 40,507
(2,604) (2,274)
48,642 38,233

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

RBREHR - AREEBPITLAT AR

with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: BN -
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 54,520 41,571
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZFRFAN(BIEEEME) 86,024 18,306
Over five years HRAF - 495
140,544 60,372

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the rental payments
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The properties held have committed

tenants for terms of one to five years (2012: one to six years).

REAKEFTZ 2B BONRBEE K
WETLKABE N KL - HEWELH
HNRB—ZRF(20125F : —ERF) °
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of:

— property, plant and equipment

— investment properties

36. EA&IE

ERTAEHARNEA M BRERT
BBz BAMN

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
1,399 9,850
4,093 162,000
5,492 171,850

37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group had defined contribution retirement scheme (the
“Retirement Scheme”) for its employees and the assets of the
Retirement Scheme are held under provident funds managed
by independent trustees. With effect from 1 December 2000,
the Retirement Scheme has become a “Top Up” scheme to
supplement the minimum benefit under the mandatory provident

fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all the eligible employees

of the Group in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum
of HK$1,000, which was revised to HK$1,250 with effect
from 1 June 2012 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to
a maximum of HK$1,000, which was revised to HK$1,250 with
effect from 1 June 2012 (the “mandatory contributions”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory

contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or

total incapacity.

37. RIKBRIET &

AEEREREATHFEARBNETEI([E
RErEl]) - R EIZEER—BURGEA
FEESHES - M2000F 12 A1 HE @ EIR
AENEAEEIHEANRRATESERE
BHAA AR B IR EARF 2 %6 1

AEEEE([BEETE]) -

REELTET EEEBRESAF MR
5% &% 1,000/ 7T k& FEE E2012
F6A1REARE1,2508T  EEL AR
BENEMZK -EXESARKRKREEZ
BAHSHEMRTS% H&%ZE1,00087T
e FEE 52012466 A1 B EFHE H1,250
B[Rl R ]) &8 8765 R -
RTRTRERTRENS  IZEEER
B FRZ 100% ©
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37.

38.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(continued)

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

pension scheme is to make the required contributions.

The aggregate employers’ contributions which have been
dealt with in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2013
amounted to HK$743,000 (2012: HK$448,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the total amount of forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in

the future years was insignificant.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company

The 2002 El Scheme

The Company had a share option scheme (the “2002 El
Scheme”) approved at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 18 February 2002. Under the 2002 El Scheme
the directors of the Company may at their absolute discretion
grant options to any employee(s) including executive or non-
executive directors of the Group or associated companies,
controlling shareholders, business partners, joint venture
partners, contractors, agents, representatives, suppliers,
customers, landlords, tenants, advisers or consultants of the
Group (including any company controlled by any of the above

persons) to subscribe for shares in the Company.

38.

BB &)

RPBEZMBRRZBERFERARLZ
BEREBRARETENE - HELQRRKS
SETEDHAERKRESTEHER - AREZ
BEEARERSHEFHARE ZHK

MEZ2013F3A31 B ILFERNBR R B
2B T 42 %E A 743,00078 T(2012 4 ¢
448,000 7T) °
RIREEIR - A4 A R0 R R 2R F R AT it
ARUE BB TEAX o

B RS

VNN

2002 F K 2 E BB IR s 2
RNATN20024F2 A 18 BREIT 2 AR FIMKE

KRR & LHbfE — IR AR 5T 81 (12002 £ Kk
ZERERETE ) - R1%2002 F X EER

BRESS ARAEZARYBBREM
BEEBEARELHE R B ZHITHIENT

/\AA

EX AREZEERR  XHEH
TEBH  ABH REA Z2ELXH#
R &P XX MP FHARER(E
Ta i (A it A AR 2 (TR R IR B
B - ARBARRZ B
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. BT El

The Company (continued)

The 2002 EI Scheme (continued)

The 2002 El Scheme is for the primary purpose of attracting,
retaining and motivating talented employees, providing
participants of the 2002 EI Scheme with opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company and encouraging
participants as incentives to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole and as rewards for the
participants’ contribution or potential contribution to the Group.
The 2002 EI Scheme expired on 18 February 2012.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2002 El Scheme
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on 18 February
2002. The overall limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2002 El Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, shall be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options shall be
subject to shareholders’ approval with the connected persons of

the Company abstaining from voting.

AT (#E)

2002 F K EEIEKR B B (%)

2002 FokEBABRERETEEZANR AR
5|  BBRBEAABZES #2002 F 5K
ZERBERESS 2 EEERS T RER
DRIZFTEHEES  TBBLEEBRAK
NAIREBRHZBEMSE N - UFEERAA
REBREzBEFZ  UREAZEEHA
SE RSB RER < 2 - 2002 FkEH
BREERRHERTEIA 201262 A 18 HiEH °

AR 2002 FokEEIFR BIRERTEIRER L 2
ERETUIERETZ2&RRNHEE - T
SB@MN 200242 A 18 AR R B BTG
10% © AJ 72002 Gk & Bl IR B iR i st 8 )R AR
DR E AR R B B B LA M R TTE
ZERE T ATRREITZROEE 2 B8
ER - AMEBAADRTEEETRGD 30%

AAABEMES FTETRAERTER
RIEARESEEZCHEARD 2 BHEBEK
B HEABRGARAREULIFRTESLE
WRAARREBRRABIIFRTESHIE
ARESEEZHEARBEMBRE 88
BE1REAREA  MZAALERE RS
R zBBRERTEREDETREET
2B BRRAREETRN0.1%
ERENSRAREBARER Az EHRE
R 2 AR RBAD W B E 2D #E
#75,000,000 B T - thEE—FREE
BEERSHRRAAE  MARA CBEAL
RERRKHERSR -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. R ET &)

The Company (continued)

The 2002 EI Scheme (continued)

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
options in excess of the limit shall be subject to shareholders’
approval with such grantee and his associates abstaining from

voting.

The offer of the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days from the date of offer with the payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1. The exercise period of the share
options is determined by the directors of the Company and
shall not expire later than ten years from the date of offer.
The subscription price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of offer. Unless otherwise determined by the directors of
the Company, there is no minimum period for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised.

There was no share options outstanding at 31 March 2013 and
2012 or at any time during the years ended 31 March 2013 and
2012.

ARA(#)

2002 F R EEIEKR B B (%)

R EXF 2 BREIT - EEM1208 A HE
A ARERABK L RS R 2 BRkE(R
RBETERERITE BB ) BT RS
TRBBRITZRNEH  TEBAXRAEE
BIRM1% - EAE-SREBAZ LR Z
BREARGRRIAE  MAKAREHE
ANBERABHERS -

REBBREZZVARZZABEIAR
BH YXNEEARE1ET  BREZ
TEHRARAEZTRE  RTERERR
HEHMTFRIE ABEBARAESE
EEABERAT=ER2&BE : ()R
BERHBHARBRAEL 2 BRERMN
Sl 2 A DB 2 WTHE : (i) BERERER H
AMAMAELEXARBIMEL 2SR RE
KA AR BRAD 2 FI T + e (iii) R
BERLAPARARMN EE - FRIFAR
AIEERTERE & RBRERTEN L E
WBRE 2 &IEHIR -

720134 % 201243 A 31 H K& £ 2013
FX%2012%3 A 31 B ILFEEHBENEE
RITIEE BERAE -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. BT El»)

The Company (continued)

The 2012 EI Scheme

On 5 July 2012, a new share option scheme (the “2012 El
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Under the 2012 EI Scheme, the directors of the Company
may at their absolute discretion grant options to all directors
(including any executive and non-executive directors), full-
time employees and consultants of the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The 2012 El Scheme is valid for 10
years commencing 5 July 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The purposes of the 2012 El Scheme are to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 El Scheme
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of 2012 ElI Scheme. The overall limit on the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 El Scheme and
other share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates shall be subject to the approval of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company issue and having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options shall be
subject to shareholders’ approval with the connected persons of
the Company abstaining from voting.

AR (#)

2012 F X S E BB IR s 2

ARBN201247 A5 H B BIR R &
—IBH AR IERTB([2012 F ok & BB B A i
A&l o RIE 2012 FoxEHBREERAEE
ARARESARENBERAMEES(BETH
WITSHFWTES) AEBZ2BESRE
R B RE - ARBEAA R ZIRMD - 2012
F ok 2 BB B IR AT &1 PR SE LA E b 75 =X a8
& BRIM2012F7 A5 BT 10FR
—H4EW -

20125 xERRBREN SIS AR TRE
B2EEFNREARRRRELH 2 BEMN
MEARREREBIRZ Ha -

AR2012 FokRERBRES S RERE 2
BRETUTERZET2EaRHEE - T
SBEN 2012 ok & BN BREST 214 A
2 BRITRH10% ° A R2012 F 5k EEH
BRERETERAAREMBRETEIFA
BB E R T 2 BB AR T AT R 31T
ZROEEZEELER TRESTHE R
118217 30% ©

MANREMNES  TBTRAERTER
RIEAREZSAIHEARDZBEEBR
- HARBARRBUIIFNTESH]AE
WARATERRRABIULIFRATEREHIE
ARESECHEARLEAERE €8
BE1REABEAN  MZEALTERL RS
R ZMEBRERTERS B#TREET
ZBROEE  BRXRREHTRN0.1%
ERENGRAE L BMRBRI M ARE
RIS Z AR BB ERTEFE RO EE
105,000,000 & T - L EHE— SR LB
BEARGRRILE  MARRZEEAL
BERRBEHERE -
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The Company (continued)

The 2012 El Scheme (continued)

Subject to the aforesaid, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to each grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
options in excess of the limit shall be subject to shareholders’
approval with such grantee and his associates abstaining from

voting.

The exercise period of the share options is determined by the
board of directors of the Company and shall end on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
options. At the time of grant of the share options, the Company
must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which a
share option must be held before it can be exercised in whole
or in part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s),
if any, which must be achieved before the share options can
be exercised in whole or in past. The amount payable on

acceptance of an offer for grant of share options is HK$1.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 El Scheme shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the

Company’s shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 El Scheme
or exercised during the year ended 31 March 2013 since its

adoption.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. R ET &)
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. B fEST 8l w)

Easyknit Enterprises

The 2002 EE Scheme

On 6 June 2002, a share option scheme (the “2002 EE Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of Easyknit Enterprises.
Under the terms of the 2002 EE Scheme, the board of directors
of Easyknit Enterprises may, at its absolute discretion, offer
options to any employee (full-time and part-time), director,
supplier, consultant or advisor of any member of the EE Group
to subscribe for shares in Easyknit Enterprises subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. The 2002 EE Scheme,
which is valid for a period of 10 years, was terminated on 22
June 2012.

The purposes of the 2002 EE Scheme are to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentives to
eligible participants and to promote the success of the business
of the EE Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
2002 EE Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares to
be issued under any other share option schemes of Easyknit
Enterprises) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of the 2002 EE Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible participant of the
2002 EE Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of Easyknit Enterprises in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of Easyknit Enterprises with such

grantee and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

KEEE

2002 F k= EFBIREZ

7R20025F6 H6H - k&EE FERF # & —
TR EI([2002F kR EXBRER
2l)) - BIR2002 F K HR B X BIRIE B 2 14
FoKBRBEEESGURABHNERE R
BT RRARBEERXEEESEEM
REARZEMEE(ZHEER) EF .
HER BRI EAARLAIRBEXETE
Bz BRE MOFHARN—EERZ
2002 FkEBRBIRIELTE - 7020126 A
22 H#RE o

2002 FkEEXBRE B 5 BRI LBRE
RERBAR  RUBII SR TRERSH
EREEXEEENEMBAR ZRINES

2002 F KR EEBREFETREBTZRR
BROBE NG (ERBEXREE  EMEME
R EIE T RITZEMRND & HETE) BB
RE#H2002 F kB EXERIEFEIZER 2B
BT 210% °

REMI12EABEA - E2002F KEEFE
BRE B ZEAERBEETHEAMER
TRBBRER  BTRTZ&SBMNEAA -
DPkEEXEEBRITRND21% KR - EE
—IREBBUREZEBRE  AFRRR
KEBEFBRRAG LHESAIEE - Mz
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Easyknit Enterprises (continued)

The 2002 EE Scheme (continued)

The exercise period of the share options is determined by the
board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises and shall end on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. There is no specific requirement under the 2002
EE Scheme that an option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised, but its terms provide that the
board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises has the discretion to
impose a minimum period at the time of offer of any particular
option. The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of the offer, with the payment of a

nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the offeree.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2002 EE Scheme may be determined by the board of directors
of Easyknit Enterprises in its absolute discretion and notified
to each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of Easyknit Enterprises on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares of Easyknit Enterprises
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the

shares of Easyknit Enterprises on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2002 EE Scheme or
exercised during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2012.
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Easyknit Enterprises (continued)

The 2012 EE Scheme

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme (the “2012
EE Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of Easyknit
Enterprises. Under the terms of the 2012 EE Scheme, the
board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises may, at its absolute
discretion, offer options to any full-time employee, director or
consultant of any member of the EE Group (including associated
companies) to subscribe for shares in Easyknit Enterprises
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The 2012
EE Scheme is valid during the period of 10 years commencing

29 June 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 EE Scheme are to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of Easyknit
Enterprises and its shares for the benefit of Easyknit Enterprises

and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
2012 EE Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares to
be issued under any other share option schemes of Easyknit
Enterprises) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of the 2012 EE Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible participant of the
2012 EE Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of Easyknit Enterprises in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of Easyknit Enterprises with such

grantee and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

38. BRESTE 2
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2012 F K& EFBREZ

R201266 H29H « KEE X RF I —
TEEREEI([2012F K EEXBRE
2] REB2012FKBREXBEREFE
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BEZTEMRE Z R RGEHRKBEEE
SEAMKERR(RERERR) 2E[AZ
BES EF BERIBHAARLEAIREK
BEERMD 2 BARE - 2012 F R BEERBR
R EIBR I A E 5 A S IB 5T - B RIA
20124 6 A29 HiBAT 10 FEARA—E A -

012FXZEXBREANEEZBTAE
BEREFN R KBEERAKRN 2 BE
UHEKBEEXENERRZME -

BIR2012 kB EXBREA B ET
BEaROBENF(ERBEXREE M
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BN RMN 2012 F kBB EBRIETEIE B
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Easyknit Enterprises (continued)

The 2012 EE Scheme (continued)

The exercise period of the share options is determined by the
board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises and shall end on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options. At the time of grant of the share options, Easyknit
Enterprises must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised
in whole or in part, and (b) specify the minimum performance
target(s), if any, which must be achieved before the share
options can be exercised in whole or in past. The amount
payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of share options is
HK$1.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 EE Scheme may be determined by the board of directors
of Easyknit Enterprises in its absolute discretion and notified
to each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of Easyknit Enterprises’ shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of Easyknit Enterprises’ shares
on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the

Easyknit Enterprises’ shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 EE Scheme
or exercised during the year ended 31 March 2013 since its

adoption.
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EE20134F 3531 HIFF/Z
39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 3. TEMB LT ZFHE
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 20133 431 H k20123 A31H » &

March 2013 and 31 March 2012 are as follows:

AAIEEMBLARZFEMAT :

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share

Place of capital/ registered
incorporation/ Nominal value capital held
establishment and of issued share/ indirectly by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ~ Company Principal activities
AARFEL
HMAL/ R B8/ BRITRE/
WELREHR REgH AMRAEE AR AEE LA TERH
2013 2012
Chancemore Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 43.52% 72.36%  Property investment
Hong Kong EER1ET MERE
ERRRER/EE
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 43.52% 72.36%  Finance company
B ERERAR Eh LER1EL ENRE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 43.52% 72.36%  Property investment
BERRERAR Hong Kong EER1ET WERE
EBRAREE/BE
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited Bermuda Ordinary HK$4,119,415 43.52%  72.36%  Investment holding
KEBREEERAA ARE LiBR4, 19,4557 REER
Easyknit Global Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 43.52% 72.36%  Trading of garments
KERRERAF & LRR2ET RKEE
Easyknit Properties Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property management
KENRERERAA A Ei®AR 10,000 nxEER
Easyknit Worldwide Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 43.52% 72.36%  Trading of garments
A LER2ET RKEE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 43.52% 72.36%  Trading of marketable
KEBARAT i LEkoE securities
EHEE

K BEAEEAR AR 2012/13 4§t

173




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013

EZ20134%3 31 HIFFEE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. TEMB AR ZFHE @)

174

Place of capital/ registered
incorporation/ Nominal value capital held
establishment and of issued share/ indirectly by the
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  Company Principal activities
LNGIE 2P
HMAL/ R BEfT/ BRIRE/
MWEARER REBEHE AMRAEE EMRAEELS TERK
2013 2012
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
trEERAR AR i LiakoBT NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
RIEEEERARA & LilkoBT NERE
Grow Well Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
Singapore TAR1ET NERE
ERRAES /K
Hansford International Investment Limited  British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EEERREERAR Hong Kong LER1ET NERE
ABRNEE/BA
Happy Light Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
HEREERAR Hong Kong EER1ET NEEE
AERAEE/BE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
RBEXARARA A LiakoBT NERE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 43.52% 72.36%  Property investment
RECXERAA & LR ET NERE
Mark Profit Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment and
FHRERERAA BB LR AT trading of marketable

Easyknit International Holdings Limited

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share

2012/13 Annual Report
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
Name of subsidiary operation
HEMERYL/ KL
WELRER REgH
Planetic International Limited Hong Kong
A
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong
aRERARAH &R

Total Expect Limited

British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong
ERRRER/EE

Trump Elegant Investment Limited Hong Kong
HEREERAT] 3
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong
BERERRAA £
XEEZ(AM)BRAF PRC

Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd.

(“Enterprises Huzhou")**

KEEXGAM)BRAR(DAMER )

390. TEMB AR 2 E#®)

Nominal value
of issued share/
registered capital

BB/
HRRAEE

Ordinary HK$2
LER2ET

Ordinary HK$1
LER1ET

Ordinary US$1
EER1ET

Ordinary HK$1
BB 17T

Ordinary HK$9,998
(Non-voting deferred
HK$24)

EER9,9985TT
(BERFEELER

2B7)*

Registered
US$25,544,206

AR AR
25,544,206 5T

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share
capital/ registered
capital held
indirectly by the
Company
NG
ERTRE/
AR A E LA
2013 2012

100%  100%
72.36%

43.52%

100% =

100%  100%

100%  100%

43.52%  72.36%

Principal activities

IRER

Finance company

HENH

Property investment

Property development
NELR
Property development

ST

Property investment

Property investment

ESE

KEFBREBEARAE 2012/13 44t
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

39. TEMB AR 2 E®)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited
carry no rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general
meeting and have very limited rights to participate in a distribution
of profits and, on liquidation, to the repayment of the amount paid
up on the shares.

* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of

these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

TEXEK TEEEME
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER BB

Inactive Hong Kong
AR BE

Inactive PRC

AR i

Principal place of business

Y BEREEBRARZERERETEREER
BEMRRAG 2 BE  HEAEHINAE
ERE - BEAGFEARENEN KRN K
RAREBEREERODEHRND S -

* o HNEEA—RMRPERLZIIERED
¥ QLB AS0F HE2054F12 A14
Ei o

ERFAFIRZARAIMB AR - BARAE
EZER IBREFAZEELBRAE
BEEZIEHD MEFZERRAR &
HEMMBARZFE  8<HERNART

RBERR  ARAHAEMHARENE
TREIBZMBRR - WEMBRRAAEBD

REBLE -WEMBRAAZ T EXBHE

Number of subsidiaries

i) P!
2013 2012
12 12
9 7
2 4
23 23

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31
March 2013 or 31 March 2012.

&M B D A 201343 A 31 H 520124
3 A31 BETEMABHES -
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

390. TEMB AR 2 E#®)

The table below shows details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary

TERR/AEE-HIEEMBARZHE
HB BRI -

of the Group that has material non-controlling interests.

Proportion of ownership

Principal interests and voting

place of rights held by non-  (Loss) profit allocated to = Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary business controlling interests non-controlling interests controlling interests

FERERBEEZESR FERERS D
WEAREHE TELE RREEZLLA (&5#8)EF Rt FERER
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Easyknit Enterprises Hong Kong
KEEX N 56.48% 27.64% (1,274) 6,495 450,562 168,116

KEBENB I LT B#L22013F3 A

Easyknit Enterprises is listed on the Stock Exchange. The

Group’s shareholding of Easyknit Enterprises decreased from
72.36% to 43.52% for the year ended 31 March 2013. The
directors of the Company examined all the relevant facts and
circumstances, including the Group’s dominant voting interest
in Easyknit Enterprises, dispersion of holding of other vote
holders, participation rates of shareholders and voting patterns
in previous shareholders’ meetings and concluded that the
Group has the control over Easyknit Enterprises and recognised
Easyknit Enterprises as a subsidiary for the year ended 31
March 2013. Details of the control over Easyknit Enterprises are

disclosed in notes 2 and 4(b).

MBLFE AEERKBEEZRRERH
72.36% M £ 43.52% c AR AEEEREF
BEEBZERER  EP0EAEENKE
B HlzhERkE  EthiRERER
BEAZBRESHEE RBTREAE LR
REEERRBREAN - T EARSEEEHK
EEXBAEHIREREREZ 201343 A 31
ALEFEXEEERA—HAMBAR - HkE
B 2 BRI 2 R 4(b) B E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of Easyknit
Enterprises that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The amounts represent financial information from

the date when Easyknit Enterprises became a subsidiary of the

Company.

Non-current assets FERBEE

Current assets MBEE

Non-current liabilities FERBAE

Current liabilities DEIN=NE

Equity attributable to owners of KEBERREMGER

Easyknit Enterprises

39.

FTEMBARZHE®

RABREXRABE AR ES 2 MR E R
EMT - WEEBRRKBEERALLT
—FRK B RE AR

Proportion of ownership interests held by k& B EIHEREREBER

non-controlling interests of pdsdll]

Easyknit Enterprises

Equity interest of Easyknit Enterprises KRB FIFERERIEN

attributable to non-controlling interests of ~ KEEEEZ

Easyknit Enterprises

At At
i i
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
HK$000 HK$°000
FE F&T
630,515 371,883
373,464 290,253
(174,802) (12,888)
(31,298) (41,012)
797,879 608,236
56.48% 27.64%
450,562 168,116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR M )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
B ZE201343 A31 HILFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

390. TEMB AR 2 E#®)

1.4.2012 — 25.10.2011 —
31.3.2013 31.3.2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Revenue ERE 223,756 79,792
Expenses and costs X R AR (219,061) (60,663)
Profit for the year/period AEE/HRHF 4,695 19,129
Profit (loss) for the year/period attributable to S {EZANE &,/ EIf & (E18)
— the Company . /NC] 5,969 12,634
— non-controlling interests of Easyknit —XEBEEZIFERER
Enterprises (1,274) 6,495
Profit for the year/period AEE /R T 4,695 19,129
Other comprehensive (expense) income for ~ DMEAREE HEEMEE
the year/period attributable to (F)WA
— the Company . /NC] (14,949) 2,126
— non-controlling interests of Easyknit —XEBEE TR ER
Enterprises 1,244 507
Other comprehensive (expense) income for  ANEE /HEE M2 MH
the year/period ()W A (13,705) 2,633
Total comprehensive (expense) income for HMEAEE/HREA
the year/period attributable to (A )AL
— the Company — AR (8,980) 14,760
— non-controlling interests of Easyknit —XEEFFERER
Enterprises (30) 7,002
Total comprehensive (expense) income for AEE/HEe2mE(FEY)
the year/period Nt (9,010) 21,762
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating RELEES2HSORE)
activities MAFER (24,636) 39,822
Net cash outflow from investing activities REKRE T BERE TR (267,049) (19,166)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REME T BERATFE 363,250 =
Net cash inflow AEMAFEE 71,565 20,656

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of Easyknit MABREEUREKRE  NEELRE
ZEFSBENRZ AN ERESE RSB

REEARRH -

JEE
>
K

Enterprises to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash

dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
mEMBERRHMETE@®

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
HZ2013F3 31 HIFFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. &< 7 Z Bt % ik 0 7
THE COMPANY

2013 2012
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NIEYNGIE S 1,512,192 1,447,888
Deposit and prepayments for R —BASKREZ
a life insurance policy ®me RIEMAK 22 9,709 -
1,521,901 1,447,888
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H fth e W FRIB 510 413
Bank balances and cash BTGNS 8,298 141,980
8,808 142,393
Current liabilities DEIN=NE
Other payables H e - 5078 663 1,249
Amounts due to subsidiaries JENH B A B FIA 31,834 31,568
32,497 32,817
Net current (liabilities) assets mE(BE)EERE (23,689) 109,576
Net assets BEFE 1,498,212 1,557,464
Capital and reserves BER R
Share capital [ 31 7,942 7,942
Reserves (Note) A ) 1,490,270 1,549,522
Equity attributable to owners VNS
of the Company JEEER 1,498,212 1,557,464
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
b E L e )

For the Year Ended 31 March 2013
B Z2013%F 331 HitFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. A A G 2 BB R TR 2)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Wit AREZEERERRBEEE 22D

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the

prior years are as follows: S ¢
Share Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus profits Total
R A& E =N BABE Kt B8R maE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2011 R20115F4A1H 218,330 196,565 220,937 1,059,740 1,695,572
Loss and total AEEEERZE
comprehensive X 4558
expense for the
year — - - (128,578) (128,578)
Dividends s — - - (17,472) (17,472)
- — — (146,050) (146,050)
At 31 March 2012 /201243 A31H
and 1 April 2012 K2012F4A1H 218,330 196,565 220,937 913,690 1,549,522
Loss and total rEEERR
comprehensive SERX B
expense for the
year — - - (56,075) (56,075)
Dividends &S = = = (3,177) (3,177)
— - - (59,252) (59,252)
At 31 March 2013 % 201343 A31H 218,330 196,565 220,937 854,438 1,490,270
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Financial Summary

MBERBRE

RESULTS 4
Year ended 31 March
BZ3AALEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(BE%I)
Turnover e 465,662 35,289 39,986 203,583 524,398
(Loss) profit before taxation BRH AT (&5 18 )i Al (106,390) 210,021 438,816 110,610 647,471
Taxation credit (charge) BB ARZR) 5,006 (22,663) (49,505) (2,934) (1,723)
(101,384) 187,358 389,311 107,676 645,748
(Loss) profit for the year FEEARERE (B8 A
attributable to:
— owners of the Company o YNGI (101,384) 187,358 389,311 101,181 647,022
— non-controlling interests — JEIERR - - - 6,495 (1,274)
(101,384) 187,358 389,311 107,676 645,748
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEBRE
At 31 March
M3AS31H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
FET FET FAET FET FAET
(Restated)
(BE7)
Total assets BEE 1,443,902 1,744,172 2,162,765 2,922,403 4,057,287
Total liabilities BEE (78,718)  (128,890)  (200,134)  (493,544)  (855,363)
Net assets BEFE 1,365,184 1,615,282 1,962,631 2,428,859 3,201,924
Equity attributable to ZAYNGI &
owners of the Company FEfGHE R 1,365,184 1,615,282 1,962,631 2,260,743 2,751,362
Non-controlling interests ~ FEIERRMEZS - - - 168,116 450,562
1,365,184 1,615,282 1,962,631 2,428,859 3,201,924

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been
restated to reflect the effect of adoption of Amendments to HKAS

HE2012F3A3IBIEFECHBERE E
NRBMENESSHMASEAzEESHER

12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” issued by the S5 125% (&3] A)[ELERIE : WEBBEE | 2%

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The results,
assets and liabilities for the three years ended 31 March 2009, 2010
and 2011 were extracted from the respective annual reports and not
restated to reflect the effect of the adoption of Amendments to HKAS

12.

2. 5 220094 + 20104F k201163 H31H It
FEyEE AERARUBEEARTRES
BEIIARREFQE BT BREEE 1257 (EFT
U7 B

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report




Summary of Properties
Y EZ L

As at 31 March 2013
R20134F3 H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location Purpose
31k Rz
1. 6th Floor, Nos. 650-652 Industrial
Castle Peak Road, and T
No. 18A Wing Hong Street,
Kowloon
B
BB
650 — 6527 ' 612 &%
K ERHE 18A SR
2. 2nd Floor, Nos. 790, 792 and 794 Industrial
Cheung Sha Wan Road, T
Kowloon
|

79057 7925k K 794 57 242

3. Block B1 and portion of Block B Industrial
on 7th Floor, I
No. 481 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDESILE 481 5%

TEZBIERK
B 5

4. Unit B on First Floor, Industrial
Fung Wah Factory Building, T%

Nos. 646, 648, 648A

Castle Peak Road, Kowloon
BEH LB 646 5% - 648 5% K%

B4BAREET X AE—12TI5B

5. Roof, No. 20 Wing Hong Street, Industrial
Kowloon I
NEKEH20HKRE

A. REME

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
BHgE,/
EAEE

(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

8,514

2,997

6,992

1,937

2,657

Lease term

HAFH

Medium

]

Medium

R

Medium

R

Medium

A

Medium

R
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Summary of Properties (continued)
YEBE @)
As at 31 March 2013
R2013F3H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) A. RENZ @

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
Location Purpose BMLEm Lease term
31 A% BERAE®E BOFH
(sq. ft.)
(FFR)

6. Fifth Floor, Industrial 2,637 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street, I% i
Kowloon

NEEKEE 205 HE

7. Easy Tower Industrial/commercial 74,458 Medium
No. 609 Tai Nan West Street, I¥ /% i EA
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
NERDE
KP4 609 5%

KERES

8. Shops 1, 2, 3 on Ground Floor Commercial 13,544 Medium
together with showcase on EES i
Ground Floor, First Floor
and Second Floor of Fa Yuen Plaza,

No. 19 Fa Yuen Street,
Mong Kok, Kowloon
NEEH A

TEEHT 195

TEEESGH T2  3FEK
BE —BRh -8

9. Ground Floor, No. 50 Yun Ping Road, Commercial 900 Long
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (SES R
B
B @505k T

10. House 9, Villa Castell, Residential 2,358 Medium
No. 20 Yau King Lane, F= i
Tai Po, New Territories

HMARBERB20RAR IR +E
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Summary of Properties. (continuea)

MEBRE @)

As at 31 March 2013
R20134F3 H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Location
biubeld

11. Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor,
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor,
Shatin Heights,
No. 8003 Tai Po Road,
Shatin, New Territories

R AR AR 8003 57

YWHIEEDELR1RM2REM L

KEHh N E AL
4657

12. Third Floor,
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road,
Hong Kong
BERRRRE16157=12

18, 15 Ardmore Park #04-03,
Singapore 259959
15 Ardmore Park #04-03
N3 259959

14. 15 Ardmore Park #06-04,
Singapore 259959
15 Ardmore Park #06-04
N3 259959

15. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02,
Singapore 259959
15 Ardmore Park #18-02
¥ 3% 259959

A. REWHE =)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area

Purpose Bwgm/

JiikzS ERAEE

(sq. ft.)

(FrR)

Residential 2,086
=

Residential 781
(=2

Residential 2,885
F=

Residential 2,885
=

Residential 2,885
(=2

Lease term

HRER

Medium

Gk

Medium

&

Freehold
gy

Freehold
i

Freehold
il
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Summary of Properties (continued)
VEBE @)
As at 31 March 2013
R2013F3H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Location
ik

16. Shop C on First Floor and Shop B on
Ground Floor, One Victory,
Nos. 1, 1A and 3 Victory Avenue,
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
NEMXABFE T - 1AFERIH
BB -2 CHI T BH

17. Blocks A, B and D on Ground Floor,
Blocks A, B and D on First Floor,
Blocks A, B and D on Second Floor,
Nos. 301, 301A — C Prince Edward
Road West, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon
MBI XA FE 301 5% » 301A-C 5%
#TNA BRDE
—1EA BKEDE -

“#A -BRDE

18. Ground Floor,
No. 148 Johnston Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREHELICE 1485 T

19. Ground Floor and Cockloft,
No. 13 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
BRWEE 7013580 T REE

20. 1st — 5th Floors,
No. 15 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BRMBENMEEH1551 — 518

186

Purpose

R#

Commercial

[GES

Residential
F=

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

GES

Commercial/residential

BE/EE

REWE 2)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area
Bxem,/
BERAER

(sq. ft.)
(FHR)

3,333

8,736

580

1,232

3,765

Easyknit International Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report
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Long
R
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Summary of Properties. (continuea)
MEBE @)

As at 31 March 2013
R20134F3 H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Location
biubeld

21. Ground Floor, No. 6 Cannon Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
ERMEEREERILT

22.  Two parcels of land at an
industrial site located at the
South of Hengtang Harbour,
the West of Dongliang Road,

Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of six building

blocks being built and one building
block under construction.
FEIERTI XA tifi
PR BIHNT & 8N T R =

BB SEIR AR AT

VR AR

BETNRE TRBEZBREY R
—RAEBED ZEEY -

A. REWE &)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable area

Purpose Bwgm/ Lease term
A% ERAEE HAFH
(sq. ft.)
(FFR)
Commercial 472 Long
[EES R
Industrial 1,805,534 Medium
I F HA

KEFBREBEARAE 2012/13 44t
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Summary of Properties (continued)

MEBE @)
As at 31 March 2013
R2013E3H31H
B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. {EHEREYH
FOR SALE
Approximate Percentage Stage of
Location Purpose gross site area of interest Lease term completion
it ik BOEER RitEDL BOEH  TRER
(sq. ft)
(F5%)
1. Nos. 311A-D, Residential 17,396 100% Long Under development
Nos. 313 & 313A-C £ R ERET
Prince Edward Road West,
Ho Man Tin
Kowloon
NERXBAFER
311A — D3t - 3135
R313A - C;
2. First Floor and Second Residential 8,442 100% Medium Held for development
Floor, No. 14 Inverness =2 HE BEGEE

Road; Basement, Ground
Floor, First Floor and
Second Floor and the Roof,
No. 16 Inverness Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
EENEEXRLE 145
—BRIB R LEI6R
WH=E - —BR-#
IRXE
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